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NOTICE 
 

Notice Is Hereby Given at The Thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Dorf-
Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited Will Be Held On Friday, 30th September, 2022 At 9:00 
A.M at the Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. 2, Block F, Sector 12N, Adani Port 
and SEZ, Mundra, Kachchh, Gujarat 370421, To Transact Following Business: 
 
Ordinary Business 
 
1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2022 and the report of the Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass 
the following resolution(s) as an Ordinary Resolution(s): 
 
a) “RESOLVED THAT Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 
2022 together with the Director’s, Secretarial Auditor’s and Statutory Auditor’s Report 
thereon having been already circulated to the shareholders and produced at the meeting be 
and the same are hereby approved and adopted.” 
 
b) “RESOLVED THAT Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
on 31st March, 2022 together with the Director’s, Secretarial Auditor’s and Statutory Auditor’s 
Report thereon having been already circulated to the shareholders and produced at the 
meeting be and the same are hereby approved and adopted.” 
 
2. To appoint Statutory Auditors from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting 
until the conclusion of the Sixth Consecutive Annual General Meeting as an Ordinary 
Resolution(s) 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of section 139, 142 and other applicable 
provision, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the underlying rules viz. Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory enactment or modification thereof, 
M/s NGPC & Co., Mumbai, Chartered Accountants  (Firm Registration No. 145474W), be and 
is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 (five) 
consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
sixth Annual General Meeting from this Annual General at such remuneration to be decided 
by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Auditors plus applicable tax and 
reimbursement of traveling and out of pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose of 
audit.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. To Consider and exempt Auditors from attending Annual General Meeting and in this 
regard pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and other applicable provisions, if any, consent of the Company be and is hereby given to the 
Board of Directors to consider giving exemption to the Auditors of the Company to attend the 
General Meeting.” 
 
4. To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 
2022 and in this regard pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and Rules framed thereunder, as 
amended from time to time and such other permissions as may be necessary, the Members 
hereby ratify the remuneration of Rs. 1,75,000/- plus applicable taxes, payable to M/s. Joshi 
Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, who are appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company to conduct audit of the Cost records pertaining to product groups maintained by 
the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2022." 
 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this Resolution." 
 
5. Approval of Loans, Investments, Guarantee or Security under Section 185 Of 
Companies Act, 2013 as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 179,185 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2017 and Rules made thereunder, including any statutory modification(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and subject to such other consents, 
permissions, approvals, as may be required in that behalf, the approval of the members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to advance any 
loan including any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any 
security in connection with any loan taken by any entity which is a subsidiary or associate or 
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joint venture of the Company or any other person in whom any of the Directors of the 
Company is interested/deemed to be interested, up to limits approved by the shareholders of 
the Company u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, from time to time, in their absolute 
discretion as may be deemed beneficial and in the interest of the Company, provided that 
such loans are utilized by the borrowing company for its principal business activities. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to file necessary returns/ forms with the Registrar of Companies, if any and to 
do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary, incidental and ancillary 
in order to give effect to this Resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and are hereby severally 
authorized to certify a copy of this resolution and issue the same to all concerned persons as 
may be required” 

6. Approval of Loan and Investment by Company under Section 186 Of The Companies 
Act, 2013 as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section  179, 186 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) read with the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, including any statutory modification(s) thereto or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and subject to such other consents, 
permissions, approvals, as may be required in that behalf, the approval of the members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to (i) give any 
loan to any person or other body corporate; (ii) give any guarantee or provide any security in 
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and (iii) acquire by way of 
subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, as they may 
in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, subject 
however that the aggregate of the loans and investments so far made in and the amount for 
which guarantees or securities have so far been provided to all persons or bodies corporate 
along with the additional investments, loans, guarantees or securities proposed to be made or 
given or provided by the Company, from time to time, in future, shall not exceed a sum of Rs. 
2,000 Crores (Rupees Two Thousand Crores only) over and above the limit of 60% of the 
paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account of the Company or 100% 
of free reserves and securities premium account of the Company, whichever is more, as 
prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby 
severally authorized, to arrange or fix the terms and conditions of all such loans, guarantee 
or security to be provided or investments to be made, from time to time, and to do all such 
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acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and requisite for and in relation to give 
effect to aforesaid resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to file necessary returns/ forms with the Registrar of Companies, if any and to 
do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary, incidental and ancillary 
in order to give effect to this Resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and are hereby severally 
authorized to certify a copy of this resolution and issue the same to all concerned persons as 
may be required” 

7. APPROVAL FOR ENTERING INTO RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 
 
The Chairman tabled before the members Company’s proposal to enter into transaction with 
respect to purchase of goods and seeks approval of shareholders as the transaction mentioned 
herein is a Related Party Transaction by virtue of section 188 and such other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the company seeks Members approval. 

The Chairman then proposed the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Section 188 and such other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the Rules framed thereunder 
and any other applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory modification(s), 
amendment(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and as per the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to the board of directors for entering into a Related party transactions 
as mentioned below, the details of which are given hereunder: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the 
Related 

Party 

Nature of 
Transaction 

Section Name of the 
Director/KMP who is / 
are related and nature 
of their relationship 

Maximum 
Ceiling Limit 

(Rs.) 

1 Atir Private 
limited 

Leasing of 
Property 

188 (1)(c) Mr. Sudhir Menon & 
Mr. Subodh being 
Common Members in 
the Company. 

Rs. 35,00,000/- 
P.A + tax, as 
applicable from 
time to time 

2 Garudauav 
Soft 
Solutions 

Sale, 
purchase or 
supply of any 

188(1)(a) Mr. Sudhir Menon & 
Mr. Subodh being 

Rs. 15,00,000/- 
P.A + tax, as 
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Private 
Limited 

goods or 
materials 

Common Directors in 
the Company 

applicable from 
time to time 

3 Yaap Digital 
Private 
Limited 

Sale, 
purchase or 
supply of any 
goods or 
materials 

188(1)(a) Mr. Sudhir Menon & 
Mr. Subodh being 
Common Directors in 
the Company 

Rs. 10,00,000/- 
P.A + tax, as 
applicable from 
time to time 

4 Yaap Digital 
Private 
Limited 

availing or 
rendering of 
any services 

188(1)(d) Mr. Sudhir Menon & 
Mr. Subodh being 
Common Directors in 
the Company 

Rs. 10,00,000/- 
P.A + tax, as 
applicable from 
time to time 

5 Yaap Digital 
Private 
Limited 

Leasing of 
property of 
any kind 

188(1)(c) Mr. Sudhir Menon & 
Mr. Subodh being 
Common Directors in 
the Company 

Rs. 12,00,000/- 
P.A + tax, as 
applicable from 
time to time 

 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do and execute all 
such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of 
giving effect to this resolution.” 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For and on Behalf of Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited 
  
  
 
SUBODH MENON 
DIRECTOR 
DIN 00972842 
20th September, 2022 
 
Registered Office: 
Plot No.2, Block F, Sector 12N, 
Adani Port & SEZ, Mundra, 
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Kachchh, Gujarat-370421 
CIN: U24100GJ1992PTC102619 
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NOTES 
 
1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of the Special business mentioned above is enclosed 
 
2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (AGM) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. An instrument appointing a proxy in order to be valid/ effective must be duly 
filled in all respects and should be lodged with the Company at its registered office at least 48 
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A person appointed as a proxy shall act on 
behalf of such number of Member(s) not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company, carrying voting rights. Further, a Member 
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person 
or shareholder. The instrument appointing proxy in order to be valid and effective should be 
lodged/deposited with the Company at its Registered Office at least 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting 
 
3. Body Corporates members intending to send their Authorised Representative to 
attend Annual General Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution 
authorising their representative/s to attend and vote at the meeting  
 
4. The instrument appointing the proxy duly completed, stamped and signed must be 
deposited 
 
5. Members/proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to 
attend the Meeting. 
 
6. The route map of the venue of the Meeting is given in the Notice. 
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FORM NO. MGT-11 
Proxy Form 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration Rules, 2014) 

 
CIN   :  U24100GJ1992PTC102619 
Name of Company :  DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered Office :  Plot No. 2, Block F, Sector 12N, Adani Port and SEZ, Mundra, 
    Kachchh, Gujarat 370421 
 

Name of the Member(s): 
Registered Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Folio No./Client Id/DP ID: 

 
I/We, being the member(s) of ………. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint 
1. Name: ……………………… 
Address: …………………… 
Email Id: …………………… 
Signature: ……………………, or failing him 
  
2. Name: ……………………… 
Address: …………………… 
Email Id: …………………… 
Signature: ……………………, or failing him 
  
3. Name: ……………………… 
Address: …………………… 
Email Id: …………………… 
Signature: ……………………, or failing him    
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 30th day of November, 2022 
at 09:00 AM at Plot No. 2, Block F, Sector 12n, Adani Port and SEZ, Mundra, Kachchh, Gujarat 
370421 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
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Sr. 
No. 

Resolution(s) For Against 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2022 together with the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Statutory & Secretarial Auditors 
thereon. 

  

2. To Consider Appointment of M/s NGPC & Co., Mumbai, 
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
for a term of  5 years commencing from this AGM till 6th AGM  

  

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

3. To grant exemption to Auditors for attending Annual General 
Meeting 

  

4. To Ratify appointment and remuneration of a Cost Auditor.   

5. To Consider Approval of Loans, Investments, Guarantee or 
Security under Section 185 Of Companies Act, 2013 

  

6. To Consider Approval of Loan and Investment by Company 
under Section 186 Of The Companies Act, 2013 

  

7. To Consider Approval of Related Party Transactions    

  
Signed this ………day of ……….2022.          

Affix Revenue Stamp Signature of shareholder Signature of first proxy holder(s) 

  
Note: 
1.  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 



Reg. Office: DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED., Plot No. 2, Block F, Sector 12N, Adani Port & SEZ, Taluka Mundra, District-Kutch-370421 Gujarat India 
 Phone: +91-2838-296366/129/032 

CIN U24100GJ1992PTC102619 

 

DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
#1 Dorf Ketal Tower, 
Orlem, Malad (W). Mumbai - 400 064
India 
Phone 
Fax 
www.dorfketal.com 

D’Monte Lane

+91-22-4297-4777 
+91-22-4297-4955 

2.  It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the “For” or “Against” column blank against any 
or all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate. 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

Venue of the Meeting  :  Dorf- Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited 
Plot No.2, Block F, Sector 12N, Adani Port & SEZ,  
Mundra, Kachchh, Gujarat 370421 

 
Date & Time   :  30th November, 2022 at 09.00 AM 
 
PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE 
MEETING VENUE  
 

Name   
Address  
DP Id*  
Client Id*  
Folio No.  
No. of shares held  

 
I certify that I am the registered shareholders/proxy for the registered shareholder of the 
Company. 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th 
November, 2022 at 09.00 am at Plot No.2, Block F, Sector 12N, Adani Port & SEZ, Mundra, 
Kachchh, Gujarat 370421 
 
*Applicable for shareholders holding shares in electronic form  
 
 
_____________________ 
Signature of Member / Proxy  
Note: 
 
1. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2022 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with 
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent through hand delivery to all the Members. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(pursuant to Provision of Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013) 
 

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to certain Ordinary Business and 
all the Special Businesses mentioned in the accompanying Notice: 
 
Item No. 2 
 
As per Section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013 consent of the members is required for 
exempting the Auditors of the Company to attend General Meetings. 
 
The Board of Directors recommend the above resolution for approval of the members. 
 
None of the Directors, Manager and Key Managerial Personnel or any of the relative of the 
said person of the Company are directly or indirectly concerned or interested in this 
resolution. 
 
Item No. 3 
 
M/s NGPC & Co. (Firm Registration Number 145474W) with the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India), Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the statutory auditors of 
the Company for the financial year 2017-18 at the Annual General Meeting held on 29th 
September, 2017. M/s. NGPC & Co. is proposed to be re-appointed for another term of 5 years 
as statutory auditors.  

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are 
concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 3.  

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 3 for approval of the members. 

 
Item No. 4 
 
This explanatory statement in relation to ratification of the Member for appointment of Cost 
Auditor is not required under the provision of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
hence not provided 
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Item No. 5 
 
As per the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, no company shall, directly 
or indirectly, advance any loan including any loan represented by a book debt, to any of its 
Directors or to any other person in whom the Director is interested or give any guarantee or 
provide any security in connection with any loan taken by him or such other person. 
However, in order to promote ease of doing business, the entire Section 185 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 has been substituted vide Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 and the same was 
notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 7th May, 2018. 

In terms of the amended Section 185 of the Act, a company may advance any loan, including 
any loan represented by a book debt, to any person in whom any of the Directors of the 
Company is interested or give any guarantee or provide any security in connection with any 
loan taken by any such person, subject to the condition that approval of the shareholders of 
the Company is obtained by way of passing a Special Resolution and requisite disclosures are 
made in the Explanatory Statement. The management is of the view that the Company may 
be required to invest surplus funds, if available in its wholly owned subsidiary Companies or 
to any other body corporate(s) in which the Directors of the Company are interested, as and 
when required. Hence, as an abundant caution, the Board decided to seek approval of the 
shareholders pursuant to the amended provisions of Section 185 of the Act to advance any 
loan, including any loan represented by book debt, to its subsidiary company(ies) (Indian or 
overseas) or other body corporate(s) in whom any of the Directors of the Company is 
interested or to give guarantee or provide any security in connection with any loans/ 
debentures / bonds etc. raised by its subsidiary company(ies) (Indian or overseas) or other 
body corporate(s)in whom any of the Directors of the Company is interested up to an 
aggregate amount of approved by the shareholder of the Company under Section 186 of the 
Company Act, 2013 over and above the limit of 60% of the paid-up share capital, free reserves 
and securities premium account of the Company or 100% of free reserves and securities 
premium account of the Company, whichever is more.  

The Board of Directors recommends resolution as set out in item No. 1 for approval of the 
members of the Company by way of passing a Special Resolution. None of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other officials of the 
Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is, in 
any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the resolution. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of 
other officials of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is, in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the 
resolution. 
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Item No. 6 

The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for Item No. 6 
accompanying notice is as under: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the Company 
shall not directly or indirectly: -  

(a) give any loan to any person or other body corporate;  
 

(b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body 
corporate or person; and 

 
(c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body 

corporate, exceeding sixty percent of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and 
securities premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities 
premium account, whichever is higher. 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186(3) of the ‘Act’, where the giving of any loan or 
guarantee or providing any security or the acquisition of securities exceeds the limits specified 
in Section 186(2) of the ‘Act’, prior approval by means of a Special Resolution passed at a 
General Meeting is necessary. In terms of Rule No.11(1) of the Companies (Meeting of Board 
and its Powers) Rules (‘Rules’), where a loan or guarantee is given or security has been 
provided by a company to its wholly-owned subsidiary or a joint venture, or acquisition is 
made by a holding company, by way of subscription of securities of its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, the requirement of Section 186(3) of the ‘Act’ shall not apply, however it will be 
included for the purpose of overall limit In the normal course of business, the Company may 
be required to give loans or guarantees or make investments in excess of the limits specified 
in Section 186(2) of the ‘Act’.  

Accordingly, it is proposed to seek prior approval of Members vide an enabling Resolution to 
provide loans, guarantees and make investments up to a sum of Rs. 2000 crores (Rupees Two 
Thousand crores) over and above the aggregate of free reserves and securities premium account 
of the Company at any point of time.  
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (including relatives of 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel) is in any way, whether financially or otherwise, 
concerned or interested, in the said resolution. 

Item No. 7 

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the rules 
framed thereunder the transaction with Atir Properties Private Limited, Garudauav Soft 
Solutions Private Limited and Yaap Digital Private Limited is a related party transaction 
whereby, the Company can enter into contract or Agreement to the extent of 10% of its 
turnover or Rs. 100 crores whichever is lower with the approval of the Board of Directors but 
where the aggregate of goods and services provided exceeds the aforesaid limits, prior 
approval of the shareholders is required by way of an Ordinary Resolution and therefore shall 
be put forth to the members of the Company for their approval at Annual General Meeting. 

Since, the transaction with the related party does not exceed the limits specified under Section 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, member’s approval is not required by way of an Ordinary 
Resolution, but for better disclosure practices the Company has disclosed for approval of 
members. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for entering various transactions as 
mentioned. 

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out in the notice for your approval. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For and on Behalf of Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited 
 
  
SUBODH MENON 
DIRECTOR 
DIN 00972842 
20th September, 2022 
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BOARD’S REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 
DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 30th Annual Report on the business and 
operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARYR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (STANDALONE): 
The Company’s financial performance, for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is summarized 
below: 

Particular 

Standalone (Amount in millions) Consolidated(Amount in millions) 
For the 

financial year 
ended 

31st March, 
2022 

For the 
financial year 

ended 
31st March, 

2021 

For the financial 
year ended 

31st March, 2022 

For the 
financial year 

ended 
31st March, 

2021 
Revenue from 
Operations  
(Net) 

17,222 12,129 26,780 19,749 

Other Income 627 296 475 135 
Total Income 17,849 12,425 27,255 19,884 
Less: Expenses 16,345 11,502 23,714 17,488 
Profit/ (Loss) before 
exceptional &  
extraordinary items 
and tax  

1505 923 3,540 2,395 

Less: Exceptional Items 162 94 201 138 
Less: Extraordinary 
Items 

- - 
- - 

Profit/ (Loss) before 
Tax 

1342 829 
3,339 2,258 

Tax     
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APPROPRIATION 

Particular Standalone Consolidated 

Interim Dividend - - - - 

Final Dividend - - - - 

Tax on distribution of 
dividend 

- - - - 

Transfer of General 
Reserve 

- - - - 

Balance carried to 
Balance sheet 

1,054 745 2,494 1,908 

  
The Highlights of the financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2022 are as follows: 

During the year under review, the company has made a profit after tax and other comprehensive 
Income of Rs. 1054/- against last year’s Rs. 745/- 
 

2. OPERATIONS: 

i) Current Tax 184 136 801 407 
ii) Deferred Tax  5 13 (56) 7 
iii)Mat Credit 
Entitlement 

147 (4) 147 (4) 

iv) Other Taxes 0 1 0 1 
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 1,007 684 2,447 1,847 
Other Comprehensive 
Income 

    

i) Items that will not be 
reclassified to profit 
and loss 

4 (4) 7 (7) 

ii) Items that will be 
reclassified to profit 
and loss 

(53) (56) (3) 3 

Total  Comprehensive 
Income for the Period 

1,054 745 2,494 1,908 
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 The Company continues to be engaged in the activities pertaining to manufacture, 
process and sells specialty and all kind of chemicals used in refining, petrochemicals and 
allied industries.  

 Geographically, during the Financial Year under review 65.41% of revenue came from 
Asia/ Africa and Middle East, 17.59% of revenue came from Europe, 16.90% of revenue 
came from America and 0.11% of revenue came from Australia and Russia. 

 
3. FINANCIALS OF THE COMPANY: 

Your Company has duly complied with IND-AS and has made its financial statement for the 
financial year 2021-2022 as per the provisions laid down under IND-AS. The Consolidated 
Financial Statement is also being presented in addition to the Standalone Financial Statement of 
the Company and same is made as per provisions laid down under IND-AS. 
 

4. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-2022: 
As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return is put up on 
the Company’s website and can be accessed at https://www.dorfketal.com/about-dorf-
ketal/compliance# 2021-2022. 

 
5. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES: 

The Company has 8 Subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2022. There has been no material change in 
the nature of the business of the Subsidiaries during the financial year under review. Further as 
on 31st March, 2022 there are no Associates Companies and Joint Venture Companies.  
 

6. REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 
COMPANIES: 
The performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiaries in the Form AOC 1 for the 
period ended as on 31st March 2022 is attached and marked as Annexure I and forms part of this 
Report. The said form AOC 1 is also attached to the Financial Statements of the Company. 
 

7. REVISION IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 
There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review. 
 

8. DIVIDEND: 
With a view to conserve resources, your Directors have thought it prudent not to recommend 
any dividend for the financial year under review. 
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9. RESERVES: 
The Board of Directors has not recommended any transfer of any amount of profit to reserves 
during the year under review.  
 

10. DEPOSITS: 
The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions 
of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of 
details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. 
Your Company has duly filed E-form DPT 3 for its Exempted Deposit under Rule 2(c) of 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as per the requirement.  

 
11. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(I) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

No material changes and commitments, which would affect the financial position of the company, 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of this report. 
 

12. DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL: 
No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact on the 
going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

 
13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
Full particulars of loans, guarantees, investments and securities provided during the financial 
year under review, has been furnished in Annexure II which forms part of this report. 

 
14. PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

Being a Private Limited Company all the transactions /contracts/arrangements that are entered 
by the Company with its subsidiary company are exempted for the purpose of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the said transactions/contracts/arrangements are duly disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statement of the Company. The disclosure of other Related Party 
Transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is duly furnished in 
Annexure III and which forms part of this report.  

15. STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY: 
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The Statutory Auditors of the Company is M/s. N.G.P.C & Co. (Firm Registration No. 145474W), 
Chartered Accountants, and the said Statutory Auditors were duly appointed in compliance with 
the provisions of Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 for the tenure of 5 years commencing from 
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 30th September, 
2022.  

16. AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks 
in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
 

17. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s JHR & Associates., Practicing Company 
Secretary (Certificate of Practice No. 4317), as the Secretarial Auditor to conduct an audit of the 
secretarial records for the financial year.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 under Act, read with 
Rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Compliance Report has been voluntarily disclosed as 
part of Annual Report as good disclosure practice. 
 

18. COST AUDITOR: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Notifications/Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time, the Board 
of Directors at their meeting dated 16th August, 2022, appointed M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates 
(Firm Registration No. 00240), Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the 
financial year 2022-2023 for the applicable Product Groups.  

 
19. CHANGES IN THE SHARE CAPITAL: 

There are no changes in Authorized Capital of the Company during the Financial Year under 
review. 
 
However, the Company has issued Bonus Shares to existing shareholders in the Board meeting 
held on 30th June, 2021 as approved by the members on 28th June, 2021 in the ratio of 5:2 (for 
every 5 shares held, 2 Bonus shares to issue). Subsequently, the paid up share capital was 
increased by Rs. 70,50,44,200/-  

 
20. MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY: 
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No changes were made in Memorandum of Association of the Company and Article of 
Associations of the Company during the financial year under review. 
 

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of 
energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo etc. are furnished in 
Annexure IV, which forms part of this Report. 
 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):  
Company continues to remain focused on improving its Corporate Social Responsibility 
initiatives. The Annual Report on CSR activities, in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013, is annexed as Annexure V and forms a part of this Report. 

 
23. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 
There were no changes except as stated above in Board of Director of the Company and Key 
Managerial Personnel during the Financial Year under review. Being Private Limited Company 
provision of section 152 relating to retire by rotation of Directors are not applicable. 
 

24. BOARD MEETINGS: 
The Board of Directors met 10 times during the Financial Year 2021-2022 in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder viz.  

1. 14th June, 2021 
2. 30th June, 2021 
3. 31st August, 2021 
4. 27th September, 2021 
5. 29th October, 2021 
6. 23rd December, 2021 
7. 13th January, 2022 
8. 7th February, 2022 
9. 10th February, 2022 
10. 18th February, 2022 

 
25. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
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Pursuant to the clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 and sub-section (5) section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Directors confirm & state that – 
 
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year under review and of the 
profit and loss of the company for that period; 

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

26. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: 
The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 
4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no 
declaration is required to be obtained. 
 

27. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 
The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and 
implemented by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious 
observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the 
Company on the inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 
 

28. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES: 
The Board of Directors of the Company has, pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014, framed “Vigil Mechanism Policy” for Directors and employees of the Company to 
provide a mechanism which ensures adequate safeguards to employees and Directors from any 
victimization on raising of concerns of any violations of legal or regulatory requirements, 
incorrect or misrepresentation of any, financial statements and reports, etc. The Company is 
committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business 
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operations. The detailed policy is placed on the website of the Company at 
https://www.dorfketal.com/about-dorf-ketal/compliance#Vigil Mechanism Policy. 
 

29. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
The Board of Directors of the Company has designed Risk Management Policy and Guidelines to 
avoid events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the 
Company's businesses, and define a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to make use 
of these in their decision making pertaining to all business divisions and corporate functions. Key 
business risks and their mitigation are considered in the annual/strategic business plans and in 
periodic management reviews.  
 

30. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
The Company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the 
requirements of Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and 
redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment. All Employees (Permanent, Contractual, temporary and 
trainees) are covered under the said policy. The Company during the Financial Year 2021-2022 
have not received any complain. 

 
31. ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY: 

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The 
Company’s policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all 
concerned, compliances of environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources. 

 
32. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

During the Financial Year under review, Company has duly complied with all applicable 
Secretarial Standards. 

 
33. PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION / COMMISSION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR FROM 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 
Being a Private Limited Company provision of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not   
applicable. 

 
34. AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
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The Company is not required to form Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 
 

35. APPRECIATION: 
Your Directors wish to place on records their sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution 
made by employees at all levels towards the growth and performance of your Company. We are 
also thankful to our Bankers and other Statutory Authorities for their co-operation and support. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of 
DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

  

 

 

SUDHIR MENON     SUBODH MENON 
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR 
DIN: 02487658     DIN: 00972842 
 
Date: 20.09.2022 
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ANNEXURE I 
PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

 
AOC-1 

 
Part A- Subsidiaries  

1 

Name of the 
subsidiary/Joint 
Venture/Associate 
Companies 

Dorf  
Ketal 
Chemicals 
FZE 

Dorf Ketal 
Chemicals 
LLC (DKC LLC) 

Dorf Ketal 
Chemicals Brasil 
Ltda. 

*Dorf Ketal 
Speciality 
Chemicals SDN. 
BHD 

2 

Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the 
holding company’s 
reporting period 

The reporting 
period is same 
as the holding 
Company 

The reporting 
period is same as 
the holding 
Company 

The reporting 
period is January 
to December. 
However the figure 
mentioned herein 
pertains to the 
period of April- 
March 

The reporting 
period is same as 
the holding 
Company 

3 

Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
F.Y. in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries. 

1 USD = INR                             
75.7925 

1 USD = INR 
75.7925 

1BRL= INR 
14.3784 

1 MYR = INR             
18.0531 

4 Share capital USD 80,672 USD 661,000 BRL 23,718,232 MYR 200,000 
5 Reserves and Surplus USD 7,768,319 USD 19,282,403 BRL 57,580,970 MYR (89,926) 
6 Total Assets USD 12,512,357 USD 54,560,431 BRL 167,938,228 MYR 4,215,078 
7 Total Liabilities USD 12,512,357 USD 54,560,431 BRL 167,938,228 MYR 4,215,078 
8 Investments - - BRL 799,158 - 
9 Turnover USD 17,923,239 USD 115,497,865 BRL 315,475,838 MYR 2,778,750 

10 Profit before taxation USD 584,036 USD 13,792,662 BRL 63,528,930 MYR 68,634 
11 Provision for taxation - USD (2,779,075) BRL 20,167,993 MYR (16,500) 
12 Minority Interest - - 20% - 
13 Profit after taxation USD 584,036 USD 11,013,586 BRL 43,360,937 MYR 52,134 
14 Proposed Dividend - - - - 
15 % of shareholding 100% 100% 80% - 
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1 

Name of the 
subsidiary/Joint 
Venture/Associate 
Companies 

Dorf Ketal 
Chemicals 
PTE Ltd. 

*Dorf Ketal 
Chemicals 
(Malaysia) SDN. 
BHD 

*Dorf Ketal 
Chemicals 
(Shanghai) Ltd. 

Dorf Ketal 
BV 
 

2 

Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the 
holding company’s 
reporting period 

The reporting 
period is same 
as the holding 
Company 

The reporting 
period is same as 
the holding 
Company 

The reporting 
period is same as 
the holding 
Company 

The reporting 
period is same 
as the holding 
Company 

3 

Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
F.Y. in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries. 

1 SGD= INR                    
55.97 

1 MYR = INR             
18.0531 

1 RMB= INR             
11.9375 

1 Euro= INR             
84.22 

4 Share capital SGD 4,029,833 MYR 800,000 RMB 1,66,90,190 EUR 4,518,000 

5 Reserves and Surplus SGD 38,848,814 MYR 25,782,162 RMB 93,223.01 
EUR 
(3,665,036) 

6 Total Assets SGD 59,504,774 MYR 45,067,333 RMB 33,071,398.41 EUR 9,060,760 
7 Total Liabilities SGD 59,504,774 MYR 45,067,333 RMB 33,071,398.41 EUR 9,060,760 
8 Investments SGD 15,274,766 MYR 53,936 - - 
9 Turnover SGD 48,898,201 MYR 38,422,418 RMB 29,292,241.81 EUR 12,786,573 

10 Profit before taxation SGD 9,569,690 MYR 5,311,476 RMB 3,307,329.45 EUR 416,582 
11 Provision for taxation SGD (1,695,649) MYR (1,273,032) RMB 2,26,925.57 EUR 299,233 
12 Minority Interest - - - - 
13 Profit after taxation SGD 7,874,041 MYR 4,063,989 RMB 3,080,403.88 EUR 715,815 
14 Proposed Dividend - - - - 
15 % of shareholding 100% - - 100% 

 
*Being Step-down Subsidiary Company of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited 
 
Note: The figures indicated above for all Companies are in their respective Reporting Currency. 

 
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations    : NIL 
Names of the subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : Dorf Ketal A.G 
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Part “B” - Associates and Joint Ventures 
 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures 
 

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Aritar Private Limited Trentar Private Limited 
   Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2022 
   Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end 
  

No. 2,55,000 65,00,000 
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 
Venture 

25,50,000 65,00,000 

Extend of Holding % 25 % 25 % 
  Description of how there is significant 

influence 
By Shareholding By Shareholding 

  Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 
consolidated 

- - 

   Net worth attributable to shareholding as per 
latest audited Balance Sheet 

10,58,750 61,99,500 

  Profit/Loss for the year   

     Considered in Consolidation (13,93,250) (300,500) 
     Not Considered in Consolidation - - 
 
# As per IND AS, negative net worth of associate companies ('Associates') and Joint Venture(s) ('JV') should 
not be included in the consolidated Net worth. 
 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations  : NIL 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year : NIL 

 
For and on behalf of Board of 
DORF KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED  For N.G.P.C & Co.  
 
 
 
SUDHIR MENON   SUBODH MENON   
Chairman & Managing Director Director    
DIN 02487658   DIN 00972842   
Date: 20.09.2022        
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ANNEXURE II 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Details for loans & investments: 
 

Name of the party 

Nature & 

Purpose of 

transactions 

Amount at the 

beginning of 

the year 

Transactions 

during the 

year 

Balance at 

the end of 

the year 

Dorf Ketal Chemicals, LLC , USA Investment 68,10,00,000 Nil  68,10,00,000 

Dorf Ketal Brasil LTDA Investment 40,00,000 Nil 40,00,000 

Dorf Ketal B.V, Netherlands Investment 34,10,00,000 Nil 34,10,00,000 

Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE Investment 50,00,000 Nil 50,00,000 

Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd Investment 21,40,00,000 Nil 21,40,00,000 

CETP MIDC Taloja Investment Nil Nil Nil 

Bharat Co-operative Bank 

Limited 
Investment Nil Nil Nil 

Aritar Private Limited Investment 25,50,000 Nil 25,50,000 

Trentar Private Limited Investment 65,00,000 Nil 65,00,000 

Aritar Private Limited Loan Nil 67,00,000 67,00,000 

Trentar Private Limited Loan Nil 2,00,000 2,00,000 
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Details for guarantees given: 
(In millions) 

Name of the party Purpose for giving corporate guarantee Amount of guarantee  

Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC SBLC-Citi Bank 758 

Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC Exim Bank for working capital facilities 758 

Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE SBLC-Citi Bank 303 

Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE SBLC-HSBC 227  

Dorf Ketal B.V. SBLC-Citi Bank 451 

Dorf Ketal Brasil Ltda SBLC-JP Morgan 474 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of 
DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

SUDHIR MENON    SUBODH MENON 
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 
DIN: 02487658    DIN: 00972842 
 
Date: 20.09.2022 
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ANNEXURE III 
AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.: No transaction 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship 

N.A. 
 

2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 
3 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 
4 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, 

if any 
5 Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ 
6 Date of approval by the Board 
7 Amount paid as advances, if any 
8 Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

Garudauav Soft Solutions Private Limited  
Nature of Relationship: Common Directors 

 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transaction 

Sale of Fixed Assets  

 Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transaction 

One time 

 Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Computers & Laptop  
Amount – Rs. 10,00,000/- 

 Date of approval by the Board 10/02/2021 
 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 
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Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

2 Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

YAAP Digital Private Limited  
Nature of Relationship: Common Directors 

 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transaction 

Purchase of Fixed Asset 

 Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transaction 

One time 

 Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Purchase of Fixed Assets – Development of Website  
Amount - Rs. 6,00,000/- 

 Date of approval by the Board 10/02/2021 
 Amount paid as advances, if any - 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

3 Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

Yaap Digital Private Limited  
Nature of Relationship: Common Directors 

 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transaction 

Leave & License Agreement 

 Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

01/07/2021 to 30/06/2024 

 Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

a. One work station space at Premises given on Leave 
and License Basis at 1st Floor, Fobeoz Tower, 
Ramchandra Lane, Malad (West), Mumbai- 400064. 

b. License Fees for providing one work station space in 
the said Premises is Rs. 5,500 p.m.  

 Date of approval by the Board 10/02/2021 
 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

 
SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

5 Name (s) of the related party & 
nature of relationship 

Sudhir Menon and Subodh Menon 
Nature of Relationship: Common Directors 

 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transaction 

Agreement for Sale of Food and Beverages required at the 
time of Sales Promotion of the Company dated 01.01.2008 
entered with La Jawaab Foods Private Limited 
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 Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transaction 

Agreement executed on 01.01.2008 and its ongoing 
unless terminated/ modified with written notice by either 
party. 

 Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Ongoing Transaction for all the events conducted by the 
Company for its business promotion & staff welfare every 
year. Company will pay the price at the arm’s length 
prevailing in the market at the time of providing the 
services.  

 Date of approval by the Board Not applicable as contract is entered at arm’s length and 
on the normal course of Business 

 Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 
 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of 
DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

 
SUDHIR MENON    SUBODH MENON 
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 
DIN: 02487658    DIN: 00972842 
 
Date: 20.09.2022 
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ANNEXURE IV 

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ WITH 
RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS), RULES 2014 

(A) Conservation of energy: 

Steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy 

At Taloja Plant: NIL 
 
At Lote Plant: 
 

1) Methane generated in process used to boiler as against Coal. 
- Methane for Boiler:  250192 Kg (25.0 lac INR) 

2) By product Lowers used for Air heaters in place of Diesel 52595 Kg  
(50 lac) 

3) Effluent water partially recycling to plant  
 1700 m3 cost equal to 17*1700= (0.289 lac) 

 
At Mundra Plant: 
 

1) Energy efficient motor for cooling tower pump (IE3). Annual energy 
saving of 30000 kwh 

2) Anti-friction coating in CTW pump. Annual energy saving of 52000 
kwh 

3) Replacing OTL-250 with dry vacuum pump. Annual energy saving of 
29000 kwh 

Steps taken by the company 
for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy 

At Lote Plant:  
 

1) Use of methane in TFH as fuel against coal. 
2) Low boilers consumption in hot gas generator against diesel. 

 
At Mundra Plant: 
 
Evaluate wind & solar energy but not viable considering payback period high 
 

Capital investment on 
energy conservation 
equipment’s 

At Taloja Plant: NIL 
 
At Lote Plant: 
 
Methane gas burning setup cost: -Rs. 9,50,000/- 
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At Mundra Plant: 
Rs. 21,00,000/- 

 
 Research & Development (R&D): 

Specific Area in which R&D 
carried out by the Company 

Company’s well-equipped Research & Development centre is located at 
Taloja, approved by, Department of Scientific & Industrial Research (DSIR) 
as in house R&D Unit. The main objectives of R&D program include: 
 
1. Development of Fuel Additives 
2. New type of corrosion inhibitors for Petrochemical Complexes 
3. Development of ecofriendly catalysts for hydrogenation applications 
4. Development of Antistatic Additives 
5. Development of Nucleating Agents 
6. Development of process chemicals 
7. Development of Refinery chemicals 
8. Corrosion inhibitors for oil field 
9. Lube Oil Pour point depressant development 
10. Water Clarifier Intermediates 
11. Drag reducing agent solvent as well as water based (winterized) 

 
Benefits derived as a result 
of the above R&D 

a. Details of new products developed during F.Y. 2021-2022 
 

i. New Product development on Lube Oil Pour point depressant 
ii. Water based Drag reducing agent and its formulation development  

iii. New corrosion inhibitor development 
iv. Development of antistatic additive 
v. Development of nucleating agents 

vi. Water soluble Imidazolines product development  
vii. Development of ecofriendly new hydrogenation catalyst  

viii. Polyglycol fluid carrier o development  
ix. PCMX development for process chemicals 
x. Ethyl amine triazine product for H2S scavengers 

xi. Drag reducing agent solvent based (winterized) 
xii. Para Chloro Meta Xylene (PCMX) Development 

xiii. Styrene polymerization inhibitor  
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b. Improvement in existing production process 
 

i. DETA-Imidazolines products process improvement 
ii. Hydrogenation of olefinic compounds in to valuable alkanes product 
iii. Alkylated DPA Product Process Development  
iv. Olefin-MA development product process improvement 
v. Phosphonates product and process development of oil field chemicals 
vi. Improved process for NBMA with <300 ppm residual formaldehyde 
vii. High PH and High active Ca - Scale inhibitor calcite 
viii. H2S scavenger reformulations 
ix. Solvent change for various formulation for cost reduction 
 

c. New technologies commercialized by the company 
 

i. Pour point depressant development 
ii. Drag Reducing Agent Development and its formulations 
iii. H2S scavengers 
iv. Fuel additives development based on different solvents 
v. Water soluble Imidazolines for corrosion inhibitors 
 

Future Plan of actions The Research and Development unit is striving for newer sustainable 
technologies by innovation. The Research and development team is keen to 
improve the production processes and their efficiency.  The Company’s R&D 
team is also committed to improve and develop new sustainable processes 
for effluent treatment for cleaner environment. 

 
Expenditure on Research & Development: 

     (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 
31/03/2022 
 (Rs.) 

For the year ended 
31/03/2021 
 (Rs.) 

Capital Expenditures 10.26 79.90 
Recurring Expenditure 789.16 733.31 
Add: Depreciation Nil Nil 

Total 799.42 813.21 
Total R&D Expenditure as a % of Turnover  
(Net of Taxes & Duties) 

0.46% 0.67% 

Capital WIP 10.26 Nil 
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   (B) Technology absorption: 
 

Efforts made towards technology absorption At Lote Plant: 

Effluent water partially recycling to plant  

In house. 1700 m3 cost equal to 17*1700= Rs. 28,900/- 

Benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution 

Fresh water consumption reduced. 

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year): N.A. 

 Details of technology imported  N.A. 
 Year of import N.A. 
 Whether the technology has been fully 

absorbed 
N.A. 

 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption 
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof 

N.A. 

 
 (C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 

 2021-2022 2020-2021 
Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs. 

Actual Foreign Exchange earnings 14,09,26,69,621 8,92,79,18,088 
Actual Foreign Exchange outgo 5,25,86,15,892 3,87,76,47,007 
 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of 
DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

 
SUDHIR MENON    SUBODH MENON 
Chairman & Managing Director  Director 
DIN: 02487658    DIN: 00972842 
 
Date: 20.09.2022 
 



ANNEXURE -V 

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL 

YEAR COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2020 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. Attached 

2. Composition of CSR Committee:  

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the 
year 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during the year 

1 Mr. Subodh Menon Director- Operations & Business Dev. 4 4 

2 Mr. Pramod Menon Director- Marketing 4 4 

3 Mr. Yogesh Ranade Director 4 4 

 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the 
company. 

 https://csr.dorfketal.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/CSR-Policy.pdf  

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). 

 Not applicable. 

  



5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any 

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding 
financial years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be set-off for the 
financial year, if any (in Rs) 

1 2018-19 Nil Rs. 1,27,02,743/- 

2 2019-20 Nil Rs. 87,20,908/- 

3 2020-21 Nil Rs. 20,09,541/- 

 TOTAL Nil Rs. 2,34,33,192/- 

 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). 

 Rs.   68,09,61,314/-  

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 

 Rs. 1,36,19,226/- 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. 

 Nil. 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 

 Nil. 

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c). 

 Rs. 1,36,19,226/- 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 



 CSR amount spent for the financial year is Rs. 1,56,28,767/- 

 

Total Amount Spent for 
the Financial Year. (in 
Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs. Nil) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as 
per second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount. Date of transfer. 
Name of the 
Fund Amount. Date of transfer. 

Rs. 1,56,28,767/- Nil - - - - 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project. 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act 

Local 
area 
(Yes 
/No) 

Location of the project. Project 
duration 

Amount 
allocated 

For the 
project 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 

financial 
Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 
transferr

ed to 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 
for the 

project as 
per 

Section 
135(6) 
(in Rs.). 

M
od

e 
of

 Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
on

 
d

ir
ec

t 
(Y

es
 /

N
o)

 

Mode of Implementation – 
Through Implementing 

Agency 

St
at

e 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

Name CSR 
Registration 

number 

1 

Educational 
Development 
of Tribal & 
Rural Students 

Promoting 
Education 
and 
Environmen
t 

No. 
Maharashtra 
and MP 

Palghar and 
Narmadapura
m 

1 year 
43.13 
Lakhs 

43.13 
Lakhs Nil No Navdrushti  CSR00013054 



2 

Support to 
Cognitively 
Challenged 
Children 

Promoting 
Education No. Maharashtra 

Mumbai and 
KDMC 1 year 3.00 Lakhs 

3.00 
Lakhs Nil No 

Inclusive 
Centre of 
Education 

 

4. Responsible 
use of Internet 

Preventive 
Health Care No. Maharashtra Mumbai 1 years 1.00 Lakhs 4.00 

Lakhs Nil No 
Institute for 
Psychological 
Health 

CSR00002456 

5. 
Covid19 Relief 
Work Health care No. Maharashtra 

Districts of 
Maharashtra 1 year 

50.00 
Lakhs 

50.00 
Lakhs Nil No MSDMA  

6. 
Covid19 Relief 
Work Health care No. Meghalaya Meghalaya 1 year 

25.00 
Lakh 

25.00 
Lakh Nil No 

Govt. of 
Meghalaya  

7. Accident 
prevention 

Accident 
prevention  Yes Maharashtra Ratnagiri 1 Year 2.50 Lakhs 2.50 

Lakhs Nil No. Gharda 
Foundation CSR00000680 

8. 
Hunger Relief 
under 
PMGKAY 

Nutrition & 
Food Yes Gujrat Silvasa 1 year 1.00 Lakhs 

1.00 
Lakhs Nil No. 

Federation of 
Industries 
Association 
Silvassa 

 

9. 
Covid19 Relief 
Work 

Promoting 
Health Care No. Maharashtra Mumbai 1 year 1.75 Lakhs 

1.75 
Lakhs Nil No LTMMC  CSR00003157 

11 Sports Dev. Promote 
Sports No. Maharashtra Kolhapur 1 year 0.46 Lakhs 0.46 

Lakhs Nil Yes - - 

12 
Revival of 
Performing 
Arts 

Protection 
of Art and 
Culture 

No. Kerala  Kerala 1 year 17.50 
Lakhs 

17.50 
Lakhs 

Nil No 

Folkland-
International 
Centre for 
Folklore and 
Culture 

CSR00002456 

13 

Support to 
Differently 
Abled Children 
and Health  

Education 
and Health 

No. Mumbai Maharashtra 1 Year 11.45 
Lakhs 

   SAPREM NGO CSR00003104 



 TOTAL            

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
schedule 
VII to the 
Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount 
spent for 
the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Mode 
of implementation – 
Direct (Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation –
Through implementing 
Agency. 

State. District. Name. 
CSR registration 
number. 

          

 TOTAL         

 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:  

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable. 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 1,56,28,767/-/- 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any- Nil 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 1,36,19,226/- 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 1,56,28,767/- 



(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 20,09,541/- 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Rs. 20,09.541/- 
(Surplus spending) 

 

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

Sl. No. Preceding 
Financial 
Year. 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 
(in Rs.) 

Amount spent in 
the 
reporting 
Financial Year 
(in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any. 

Amount rema-
ining to be 
spent in 
succee-ding 
financial years. 
(in Rs.) 

Name 
of the 
Fund 

Amount (in Rs) Date of transfer 

        

 TOTAL Nil - - - - Nil 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sl. 
No. 

Project 
ID. 

Name of the 
Project. 

Financial Year in 
which the 
project was 
commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total 
amount 
allocated for 
the 
project (in 
Rs.). 

Amount 
spent on the 
project in 
the 
reporting 
Financial 

Cumulative 
amount spent 
at the end of 
reporting 
Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Status of the 
project -
Completed 
/Ongoing. 



Year (in 
Rs). 

         

 TOTAL Nil - - - - Nil TOTAL 

 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial 
year 

(asset-wise details). 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset). 

 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5). 

 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Sudhir Menon 
(Chairman & Managing Director) 

DIN 02487658 
Date: 

 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Subodh Menon 
(Chairman CSR Committee) 

DIN 00972842 
Date: 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
To the Members of  
Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India 
Private Ltd. (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its 
Profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its Cash Flow for the year ended 
on that date.  
 
Basis of Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial 
statements. 
 
Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone 
Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
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appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report the fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements  
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,  
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
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company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3  and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;  

 

a. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;  

 

b. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account; 
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c. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

d. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

 

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. The Company has pending litigations; however there would not be any adverse impact 
on the financial position. 

 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts;  

 

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any funds to investor education and protection 
fund. 

 
 
For and on behalf of  
NGPC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s registration number: 147454W 
 
 
 
 
PUSHPA U CHANDWANI 
Partner  
M. No: 101536 

UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24-06-2022 
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on 
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report that: 
 

i) (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment; 
   

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its Property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a 
phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain 
Property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 

(c) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of 
the Company. 
 

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and 
equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year. 
 

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 
 
 

ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our 
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as 
followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification 
between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for 
each class of inventory.  
 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital 
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current 
assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such 
banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company. 
  

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, 
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the 
year. 
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(a) A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has granted any loans to subsidiaries as below:

Particulars 

Amount 

(in 
Millions) 

Aggregate amount during the year – Subsidiaries 69 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date – 
Subsidiaries 

69 

B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans to a party other than subsidiaries. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans
given are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety
days in respect of loans given.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year,
which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same party.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee 
or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has 
provided guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in relation to loans given and investments made.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi) The Company has maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the 
company.
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vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Goods
and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the
date on when they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the details of statutory dues of
income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or duty of custom or duty of excise or value added tax or
goods and service tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are
given below:

Statue/nature of dues 
Amount in 
Rupees ** 

Period for 
which the 
amount relates 

Forum where the dispute is pending 

Income Tax 11,94,880 2014-15 
Commissioner of Income Tax 

(Appeals) - 1, Thane 

Income Tax 1,55,94,950 2015-16 
Commissioner of Income Tax 

(Appeals) - 1, Thane 

Income Tax 23,84,424 2015-16 
Commissioner of Income Tax 

(Appeals) - 50, Mumbai 

Income Tax 25,44,223 2014-15 
CIT(A)-50, Appeal against penalty 

levied 

*net deposit

**The amounts disclosed are net of payments and include interest and penalties,
wherever applicable.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.



N G P C & CO. 
  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. 

 
104,Argentum,                      Navnit S. Gajja            Pushpa U. Chandwani              402,Maker Bhavan No.3 
Opp.patkar College,                B.Com,F.C.A.                       B.Com,F.C.A.                    21 New Marine Lines,  
S.V. Road Goregaon West                                                                                                Mumbai-400020.  
Mumbai 400062                                                                                                                 Tel:22038518/22083219 
Mob: 9920088503/9920283255                                                                                                                       
Email ID: ngpcco@gmail.com                            
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 
Company has obtained term loans and such term loans have been applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained. 
 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that funds have been raised on short-term basis 
by the Company and such funds have not been utilised for long term purposes. 
 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds 
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined 
under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, 
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
 

x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in 
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 
 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 
 

xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards. 
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xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our 
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business. 
 

(b)   We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the 
period under audit. 
 

xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 
the Company. 
 

xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(c)    The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(d)   According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, 
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not 
applicable. 
 

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 
 

xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable 
 

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
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xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to 
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
 

For and on behalf of  
NGPC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s registration number: 147454W 
 
 
 
 
PUSHPA U CHANDWANI 
Partner  
M. No: 101536 

UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183   
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24-06-2022 
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone 
Financial Statements of Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited. 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dorf-Ketal Chemicals 
India Private Limited. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.  
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.  
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
 

Opinion  
 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

For and on behalf of  
NGPC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s registration number: 145474W 
 
 
 

PUSHPA U CHANDWANI 
Partner  
M No: 101536 

UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 24-06-2022 



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 
(All Amounts in INR)

(Amt. in Million)

Particulars  Note No 
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

I.  ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2    2,701    2,985    
(b) Right of use assets 2    347   356   
(c) Capital work-in-progress 3    716   261   
(d) Goodwill 4    513   513   
(e) Other Intangible assets 4    9    10   
(f) Financial Assets

(i) Investments in Subsidiaries , Associates and
Joint Venture 5    1,253    1,246    

 (ii) Other Investments 6    -    -    
 (iii) Loans 7    122   78   
 (iv) Other Financial Assets 8    48   41   

(g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 23    249   427   
(h) Income Tax Assets (net) 9    147   155   
(i) Other non-current Assets 10    147   158   

Total Non Current Assets 6,252    6,229    

(2) Current assets
 (a) Inventories 11    3,433    2,483    
 (b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 12    1,522    200   
(ii) Trade receivables 13    4,251    3,570    
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14    184   220   

 (iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents 15    72   34   

(v) Loans 16    36   35   
(vi) Others Financial Assets 17    127   37   

 (c)  Current Tax Assets (Net) 18    73-       10-       
 (d) Other current assets 19    480   425   
Total Current Assets 10,033    6,994    

TOTAL ASSETS 16,285    13,223    

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

 (a) Equity Share capital 20    2,468    1,763    
 (b) Other Equity 21    8,343    7,994    

Total Equity 10,811    9,757    

Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22    712   502   

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c) Non -  Current financial liabilities 22.1   36   36   

Total Non Current Liabilities 748   539   

(2) Current liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities

 (i)  Borrowings 24    2,552    1,238    
 (ii) Trade payables

 Total outstanding dues of Small enterprises & Micro Enterprises 25    8    16   
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
 and small enterprises 25    

1,367    1,067    

 (iii) Others 26    -    10   
(b) Other Current Liabilities 27    190   137   
(c) Provisions 28    608   460   

Total Current Liabilities 4,726    2,928    

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,285    13,223    
Significant Accounting Policies 1    
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 2 to 55 0   -0 

   0 

For  NGPC &  CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 145474W

Partner     Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon   Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
 Mumbai    Chairman and 

  Managing Director  
Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183
Mem No:101536     DIN:02487658 DIN:00972842
Date: 24th Jun 2022      Date: 24th Jun 2022



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the  year ended March 31, 2022 
(All Amounts in INR)

(Amt. in Million)
Sr. No  Particulars Note No.  For the year

2021-22 
 For the year

2020-21 

I Revenue from operations (net) 29 17,222   12,129   
II Other income 30 627    296    

III Total Income (I+II) 17,849   12,425   

IV EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 31 10,798   7,690  
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-
in-trade [(Increase)/Decrease] 32 105    (203)  

Employee benefit expense 33 2,082  1,735  
Finance costs 34 118    92   
Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 366    361    
Other expenses 36 2,875  1,827  

Total Expenses (IV) 16,345   11,502   

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV) 1,505  923    

VI Exceptional Items 36.1 162    94   

VII Profit/ (loss) before tax(V-VI) 1,342  829    

VIII Tax Expenses :

1) Current Tax 39 184    136    
2) Deferred Tax 39 5   13   
3)MAT Credit Entitlement 39 147    (4)   
4)Other Taxes * 39 0   1   

IX Profit/(loss) for the year (V - VI) 1,007  684    

X Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans Liability/(Asset) 7   (7)   
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
 statement of profit or loss

(3)   3  

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Statement of profit or loss
- Effective Portion of (Gains)/losses on hedging instruments in 
 cash flow hedges

(81)    (87)    

 - Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to 
 statement of profit or loss

28   31   

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII) 1,054  745    

Earning per equity share of face value of ₹ 100 each 40

Basic and Diluted (in Rupees) ₹ 46.00 ₹ 42.28

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 2 to 55

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

   Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
  Chairman and
  Managing Director   

Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

  DIN:02487658 DIN:00972842

Date: 24th Jun 2022    Date: 24th Jun 2022

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

As per our report of even date

For  NGPC &  CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 145474W

Partner

Mumbai
UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183
Mem No: 101536  



(0) 
Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)

(Amt. in Million)
 Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profit before tax 1,342 829 
Adjustments for :
- Depreciation & Amortisation (net) 366 361 
- Interest & Finance Charges 118 92 
- Interest & Dividend Income (430) (128) 
- Net gain on Fair valuation of Derivatives through profit and loss - - 
- Actuarial Gains/(Loss) remeasured to OCI (7) 7 
- Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivable 1 (3) 
2. Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,390 1,159 
Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Working Capital:
- Inventories (950) (86) 
- Trade Receivables (682) 263 
- Loans (46) 256 
- Other financial assets (97) (35) 
- Other Current asset (30) 37 
- Other Non Current Assets 19 (28) 
- Trade and other payables 292 261 
- Other Financial Liability & Provisions 138 (358) 
- Other Current Liabilities 53 (53) 
3. Increase / Decrease in Working Capital (1,303) 258 

4. Cash generated from Operations after changes in Working Capital (1 + 2 + 3) 87 1,417 
Other Comprehensive Income 81 87 
Income Tax Paid (184) (137) 
NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES Total (A) (16) 1,367 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (528) (480) 
Purchase/Sale of Investments (1,329) (167) 
Purchase of Fixed/ Term Deposits and Margin Money held with Banks
Non current financial asset
Interest & Dividend Income 430 128 
NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES Total (B) (1,427) (519) 

C. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Extra Ordinary Activity
Addition pursuant to Merger Scheme
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Extra Ordinary Activity Total (C)

D. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long term borrowings 210 36 
Proceeds from Working Capital (Short term borrowings) 1,315 (701) 
Proceeds from Lease Liability * (0) (0) 
Proceeds from Equity
Interest & Finance Charges (118) (92) 
Dividend Paid
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Total (D) 1,406 (758) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (A) + (B) + ( C) + (D) (37) 90 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Period 220 131 
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period (Refer Note No. 2 below) 184 220 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

Notes

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

(a) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 181 218 
(b) Cash on Hand 2 1 
(c) Term deposits with bank original maturity of less than 3 months 1 2 

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents (a) + (b) + (c) 184 220 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 184 220 
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million (0) 0 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For  NGPC &  CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 145474W

Partner Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon Vijaykumar MalpaniRajdeep Shahane
Mumbai Chairman and Director Chief Financial Company Secretary
UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183 Managing  Director
Mem No: 101536 DIN: 02487658 DIN:00972842
Date: 24th Jun 2022             Date: 24th Jun 2022

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

2. Cash and Cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and balances with banks. Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the statement of Cash flows
comprises of the following amounts in the balance sheet -

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)

A Equity share capital (Amt. in Million)
Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2021 1,763   
Changes in equity share capital 705   

2,468   

As at March 31, 2022 2,468   

B Other Equity (Amt. in Million)

 Securities 
premium 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

 Amalgamation 
Reserve * 

 General reserve  Retained 
Earnings / 

Surplus 

 Special 
Economic Zone 
Re-investment 

Reserve 

 Effective Portion of 
Gains/(losses) on 

hedging 
instruments 
  in cash flow 

hedges 

 Other items of 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

Balance as on March 31, 2021   1,156   20   0   109   6,723   4 (18) 7,994 

Less: Bonus Share issued during the year   (705)   (705)
Less : Transfer during the year   (237)   (237)
Add: Profit for the year/Changes during 
the year   -  -     -  -     1,007   237   52 (5) 1,291 

Balance as on March 31, 2022   1,156   20   0   109   6,788   237   57 (23) 8,343 

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

Nature and purpose of reserve
a) Securities premium

b) Capital Redemption reserve

c) Amalgamation reserve

d) General Reserve

e) Retained Earning

f) Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve

g) Other Comprehensive income - Effective Portion of Gains/(losses) on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN:00972842

As per our report of even date

For  NGPC &  CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 145474W

Partner
Mumbai
UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183
Mem No: 101536  
Date: 24th Jun 2022     Date: 24th Jun 2022 

   Director
   DIN:02487568

Particulars

 Reserves and Surplus 

 Total equity 

 Other Comprehensive Income 
 Other equity 

   Chairman and Managing
Sudhir Menon

Capital redemption reserve is taken over from Filtra Catalysts & Chemicals Ltd. at the time of acquisition. This reserve will utilised for issueing fully paid bonus shares to existing share holders.

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from / to retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of 
equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on the balance sheet date.

The Special Economic Zone (SEZ) re-investment reserve is created out of the profit of eligible SEZ units in terms of the provisions of section 10AA(1)(ii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961. The reserve will be utilised by
the company for acquiring new assets for the purpose of its business as per the terms of section 10AA(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961.

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. Such 
gains or losses will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in the period in which the underlying hedged transaction occurs.

Amalgamation reserves are created to adhere to requirements of applicable laws and will be utilised in accordance with the said laws.

Securities premium is created for issue of fullypaid equity share. The reserve will utilised for issueing fully paid up bonus shares to existing shareholders



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Ratio Analysis

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current year Previous year % Variance
Current ratio (in times) Total current assets Total current liabilities 2.12 2.39 0.11

Debt-Equity ratio (in times) Debt consists of borrowings and lease liabilities. Total equity 0.31 0.18 0.67- 

Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-
cash operating expenses + Interest + Other non-cash 
adjustments

Debt service = Interest and lease payments + Principal repayments 4.96 4.95 0.00- 

Return on equity ratio (in %) Profit for the year less Preference dividend (if any) Average total equity 9.79% 7.29% 0.34- 

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 4.40 3.28 0.34- 

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Cost of materials consumed + Other expenses Average trade payables 8.87 7.86 0.13- 

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average working capital (i.e. Total current assets less Total current liabilities) 3.25 2.98 0.09- 

Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from operations 5.84% 5.64% 0.04- 

Return on capital employed (in %) Profit before tax and finance costs Capital employed = Net worth + Lease liabilities + Deferred tax liabilities 13.78% 9.83% 0.40- 

Return on investment (in %) Income generated from invested funds Average invested funds in treasury investments 1.16% 1.61% 0.28



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Company's Overview: 

Background

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policy
1.1 Basis for preparation

1.2 Use of Judgement and Estimates

(i) Assessment of Functional Currency;
(ii) Financial Instruments;
(iii) Estimates of Useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets;
(iv) Valuation of Inventories;
(v) Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations & Actuarial Assumptions;
(vi) Provisions;
(vii) Contingencies and;
(viii) Evaluation of Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets;
(ix) Impairment of Trade Receivables
(x) Identifying the performance obligations under contract with customer;

1.3 Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment

The Company was established in 1992 in Mumbai and supplies cost-effective products and chemical programs to many of the largest
refiners, petrochemical companies and plastics manufacturers petrochemical industries. The chemicals manufactured by the company
also serves the global fuel additives market with a broad portfolio of products and services, and the grease and lubricant market with
component additives.

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase
price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day
repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during
which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

The company has elected to use the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant
and Equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition (April 01, 2016).

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, further amended by Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2016; and the other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder.
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases, effective April 1, 2019, on a modified retrospective basis, applying the standard to all
leases on balance sheet. The adoption of Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of
almost all leases on balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (‘lease liability’) and an asset representing right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term (‘right-of-use asset’). An optional exemption exists for short-term and low value leases.
Refer note no (r) below for accounting policies and note no. 2  for related disclosures.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

The company's presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (Rs in INR).

The preparation of the company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and the accompanying disclosures along with contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The company continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most
recently available information. 
In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.



(b) Depreciation

(c) Intangible Asset

(d) Research & Development Expenditure

(e) Inventories

(f) Business combinations - common control transactions

(g) Fair Value measurement

• The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee.

Research & Development Expenditure pertaining to research is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss. Development costs of products
are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss unless a product's technological and commercial feasibility has been established, in such cases
expenditure is capitalised.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM) & for Filtra Unit Written
Down Value Method(WDV) . Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013.
Upfront Premium paid on Leasehold Land and classified as Finance Lease are recorded as PPE and amortised over the lease term during
the year.

The company has elected to use the exemption available under Ind AS 101 as to not restate any of the past business combinations as at
the date of transition to Ind AS (April 01, 2016).

Intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure on
internally generated intangibles, excluding development costs, are not capitalised and is reflected in Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred. Development costs are capitalised if, and only if, technical and commercial feasibility of the
project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the
asset and the costs can be measured reliably.

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and Net Realisable Value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventory
comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost including manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in
bring them to their respective present location and condition.
Cost of raw materials, chemicals, stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on weighted average
basis.

• The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or
other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other
capital reserves.

• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the company are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as
follows; 

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only made to harmonise
accounting policies.
• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred
from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, such as right of way which is perpetual and absolute in nature, are not amortised, but are
tested for impairment annually. The useful lives are reviewed at each period to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis. The impairment losses on intangible assets with indefinite life is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The company has elected to use the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its intangible assets as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition (April 01, 2016)

Software's are being amortised over a period of 5 years on straight line basis.

•The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding
balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general reserve.

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Certain accounting policies and disclosures
require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non financial assets and liabilities.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the company has access
at that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-performance risk.



- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(h) Impairment of Non Financial Assets

(i) Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification
The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those measured at amortised cost.

(ii) Measurement
4 Initial Recognition

4 Subsequent Recognition

Debt instruments

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of
the consideration given or received. If the company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer
the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:  

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

When quoted price in active market for an instrument is available, the company measures the fair value of the instrument using that
price. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis. 
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the company uses a valuation technique that maximises the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that
market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If the third party information, such as
broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties
to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which
the valuations should be classified.

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:



- Amortised Cost

 - Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through Profit & Loss Account (FVTPL)

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Note 40 details how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

* Equity instruments in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures
Investments in Equity instruments of Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures are recorded at Cost and reviewed for impairment at
each reporting date.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 "Expected Credit Loss' model of
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

- The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains
control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

The company subsequently measures all equity investments except for Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries, Associates &
Joint ventures* at fair value. Where the company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from
such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of
profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.



(j) Financial Liabilities
(i) Classification
The company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- those measured at amortised cost.

(ii) Measurement
4 Initial Recognition

4 Subsequent Recognition

- Amortised Cost

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

(k) Derivative financial instruments

Hedge Accounting

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial liabilities.

The company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the price risk and exposure on account of fluctuation in interest rate and
foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value with the changes being recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The company designates certain hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or
hedges of net investment in foreign operations. Hedges of Foreign exchange fluctuation risk are accounted as Cash flow Hedges.

At the inception of hedge relationship, the company documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of
the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the company documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in
the fair values or the cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk

- Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A financial liability is classified as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if it is classified as held for-trading or is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense,
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.



(i) Fair Value Hedges

(ii) Cash Value Hedges

(iii) Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operations

(l) Offsetting financial instruments

(m) Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original
maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of Statement of Cash
Flows, Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, cash, cheque and draft on hand. The company considers all highly liquid
investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

In case of transaction related to hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent it related to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component of equity i.e. Reserve for
time value of options and forward elements of forwards contracts in hedging relationship. This separate component is removed and
directly included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of asset or the liability (i.e. not a a reclassification adjustment thus not
affecting other comprehensive income) if the hedged item subsequently results in recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability. In other cases, the amount accumulated is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period in
which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

In case of time-period related hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent it related to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component of equity, i.e. Reserve for
time value of options and elements of forward contracts in hedging relationship. The time value of options at the date of designation of
the options in the hedging relationships is amortised on a systematic and rational basis over the period during which the options'
intrinsic value could affect profit or loss. This is done as a reclassification adjustment and affects other comprehensive income. 

In cases where only the spot element of the forward contract is designated in a hedging relationship and the forward element of the
forward contract is not designated, the Company makes the choice for each designation whether to recognise the changes in forward
element of fair value of the forward contracts in profit or loss or to account for this element similar to the time value of an option (as
described above).

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, and is included in the 'Other Income' line item.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve are classified to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

Hedge Accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion (if any) is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the 'Other Income' line item in Statement of
Profit & Loss.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulating in equity relating to (effective portion as described
above) are reclassified to profit and loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised
hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity (but not as a reclassified adjustment) and included in the initial measurement
of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

In cases where the designated hedging instruments are options and forward contracts, the company has an option, for each designation,
to designate on an instrument only the changes in intrinsic value of the options and spot element of forward contracts respectively as
hedges. In such cases, the time value of the options is accounted based on the type of hedged item which those options hedge.

Changes in Fair Value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedge are recognised in Profit & Loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to hedged risk. The changes
in the fair value of designated portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedge risk are
recognised in profit & loss in the line item relating to the hedged item.



(n) Borrowing Cost

(o) Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods & Services

Interest

Dividends

(p) Foreign Currency Transactions
(i) Initial recognition

(ii) Conversion

(iii) Exchange Differences

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which
are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are
translated using the exchange rate at the date when such fair value was determined.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company
assesses promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It excludes taxes or other amounts
collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers below:

- Variable consideration - This includes bonus, incentives, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each reporting period. 

- Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical
expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and
when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

- Consideration payable to a customer – Such amounts are accounted as reduction of transaction price and therefore, of revenue unless
the payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the customer transfers to the Company.

Dividend is recognised when right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the 
dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. 
Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items of company at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. It also include exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of funds of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract
price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the existing contract are distinct
and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up
basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling
price.



(q) Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits/Retirement Benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plans 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Other long-term employee benefits

Termination benefits (if any)

(r) Leases

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in
which the related services are rendered.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund, MLF are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
refund in future payments is available

The company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans such as gratuity, other post employment benefits etc., is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed at each reporting period end by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
the economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of employee benefit expense,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments
and settlements. Past service costs are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This net interest is
included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurements which comprise of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in the net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding amounts included in the net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Liability towards other long term employee benefits - leave encashment (Accumulating Leave Absences) or (Privilege Leave) etc., are
determined on actuarial valuation by qualified actuary by using Projected Unit Credit method. The company has also provided long
term compensated absences which are unfunded.
The current service cost of other long terms employee benefits, recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of employee
benefit expense, reflects the increase in the obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments
and settlements. Past service costs are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The interest cost is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the balance of the obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Re-measurements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Expenditure on account of Termination benefits are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.



(s) Income Taxes
(i) Current Tax

(ii) Deferred Tax

(t) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

(u) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
(i) Provisions

(ii) Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of
the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic
resources is considered remote.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in respect of items which in each case are above the threshold limit.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.



(v) Non-current assets held for sale 

(w) Cash Flows

(x) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current:

(y) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic COVID-19

(z) Recent pronouncements
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework

Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use

Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

Accounting Standards Applicability

The Company’s management has made assessment of likely impact from the COVID-19 pandemic on business and financial risks based 
on internal and external sources. The Company has also considered the possible effects of COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its 
financial and non-financial assets and debt covenants using reasonably available information, estimates and judgments and has 
determined that none of these balances require a material adjustment to their carrying values. Further, the management does not see any 
medium to long term risks in the ability of the Company to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

  Sudhir Menon

  Managing Director
  DIN:02487658

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such assets.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months)
and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.
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Note 2 :  Property, Plant & Equipment (Amt. in Million)
A : Tangible Assets

 Particulars 
Right to Use 

Asset
Freehold 

Land
Building - 

Office
Building - 

Factory
Plant and 

Equipment's
Furnitures & 

Fixtures
Office 

Equipment's
Motor 

Vehicles
Computers  Total 

Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2019 (A) 325   21   168   1,176   2,148   151   51   214   127     4,382 

Additions 43   -  0   271   284   5   4   - 27   635 
Disposals -  -  -  -  1   -  0   2 -                     3 
Adjustments ** 6   (6)  - -  0   - (0)  -  -    -  

Balance as at March 31, 2020(I)   374   15   168   1,447   2,430   157   55   212   154   5,013 

Additions -  -  -  75   243   1   5   66   7     397 
Disposals ** -  -  -  -  0   -  -  14   - 14

Balance as at March 31, 2021 (III)   374   15   168   1,522   2,674   157   61   264   161   5,397 

Additions -  -  50   16   108   35   14   4   25     252 
Disposals* -  -  -  91   441   0   4   13   - 549

Balance as at March 31, 2022 (V)   374   15   218   1,447   2,341   192   71   255   186   5,099 

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2019  (B) 26   - 16 218   1,029   71   29   74   82     1,545 

Additions 8   -  3   50   191   20   7   31   22     332 
Disposals ** -  -  -  -  1   -  0   2   -    3 

Balance as at March 31, 2020  (II)   35  -  19   268   1,219   91   36   103   104   1,874 

Additions 8   -  3   51   195   20   6   32   21     337 
Disposals ** -  -  -  -  0   -  -  10   - 10

Balance as at March 31, 2021 (IV)   43  - 22   318   1,414   112   42   125   126   2,201 

Additions 8   -  4   56   208   21   7   30   19     353 
Disposals ** -  -  -  53   300   0   4   13   - 369

Balance as at March 31, 2022 (VI)   51 -  25   321   1,322   132   46   143   145   2,186 

Net Carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 ( V - VI )   323   15   193   1,125   1,019   60   25   113   41   2,914 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 ( III - IV )   331   15   147   1,204   1,260   46   18   139   35   3,196 
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(Amt. in Million)
B  : R & D Unit

 Particulars 
 Right to Use 

Asset 
 Building - 

Factory 
 Plant and 
Machinery 

 Furnitures & 
Fixtures 

 Office 
Equipment's 

 Motor 
Vehicles 

 Computers  Total 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 (A) 30   98   71   9   4   4   1   217   

Additions ** -  0   6   -  -  -  0     7 
Disposals -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

  -  
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (I)   30   98   77   9   4   4   2   224 

Additions **  -  0   8   -  -    -    0   8 
Disposals  - -   -  -    -  -    -  -  

Balance as at March 31, 2021 (III)   30   98   85   9   4   4   2   232 

Additions   -  -    1   -  -    -    0   1 
Disposals   -  -    -  -    -  -    -  -  

Balance as at March 31, 2022 (V)   30   98   86   9   4   4   2   233 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2019 (B) 5   21   26   6   1   2   1     62 

Additions **   0   5   5   1   1   1   0   13 
Disposals   -  -    -  -    -  -    -  -  

  -  
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (II)   6   26   31   7   1   2   1   75 

Additions **   0   4   6   0   1   1   0   12 
Disposals   -  -    -  -    -  -    -  -  

Balance as at March 31, 2021 (IV)   6   30   37   8   2   3   1   87 

Additions **   0   4   6   0   1   1   0   12 
Disposals   -  -    -  -    -  -    -  -  

Balance as at March 31, 2022 (VI)   6   35   43   8   3   3   2   99 

Net Carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 ( V - VI )   24   63   44   1   1   1   0   134 
Balance as at March 31, 2021( III - IV )   24   68   48   1   2   1   0   145 
* Scrap of Taloja Plant & other asset of Taloja, refer note 36.1

** represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

(i) Leased Assets
The lease term in respect of assets acquired under finance leases expires within 62-75 years.

(ii) Assets given as security for borrowings 
 The Company have been given PPE  to lenders as security for various borrowing facilities. (Refer Note 22)

(iii) The Company has assessed recoverable amount of its property, plant and equipment by estimating its value in use. Based on the aforementioned assessment it has been
concluded that the recoverable amount is higher than the respective carrying amount.
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Note 3: Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
(Amt. in Million)

Particulars Amount Amount
Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2019 370   

Additions 417   
Disposals 605   
Balance as at March 31, 2020 182   

Additions 484   
Disposals 406   
Balance as at March 31, 2021 261   

Additions 708   
Disposals 253   
Balance as at March 31, 2022 716   

At March 31 2022 716   
At March 31 2021 261   
At March 31 2020 182   
At March 31 2019 370.07   

 3.1 Capital Work-in progress ageing  

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows : (Amt. in Million)

 Less than 1 
year 

 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Projects in Progress   608   54   52   2   716 

 Total   608   54   52   2   716 

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

 Less than 1 
year 

 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Projects in Progress   128   124   3   6   261 

 Total   128   124   3   6   261 

 3.2 Capital Work-in progress completion schedule 

Completion Schedule for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

 Less than 1 
year 

 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Projects to be Capitalised   716   -  -    -    716 

 Total   716   -  -    -    716 

 Note: Capital  work in progress is an account of Cost of Construction material and site 
and other expenditure of incomplete projects. 

 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 
 Total Particular

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 



Completion Schedule for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2021 is as follows :

 Less than 1 
year 

 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 
years 

 Projects to be Capitalised   261   -  -    -    261 

 Total   261   -  -    -    261 

Note 4: Goodwill and other intangible Assets
(Amt. in Million)

 Particulars Goodwill 
(incl Goodwill 
on Account of 

Merger & 
Acquisitions) 

(A)

Non-compete 
agreement, 
Acquired 
contracts

(B)

Software's
(C) 

 Total
(B+C) 

Gross Carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2019 (A) 609   69   5   74   

Additions -   
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (I) 609   69   5   74   

Additions 
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (III) 609   69   5   74   

Additions 
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (V) 609   69   5   74   

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at March 31, 2019 (B) 96   35   5   40   

Additions 12   12   
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (II) 96   47   5   52   

Additions 12   12   
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (IV) 96   59   5   64   

Additions 1   1   
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (VI) 96   60   5   65   

Net Carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 ( V - VI ) 513   9   0   9   
Balance as at March 31, 2021( III - IV ) 513   10   0   10   
Balance as at March 31, 2020( I - II ) 513   22   0   22   
Balance as at March 31, 2019( A - B ) 513   34   0   34   

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 
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5   Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and joint ventures
(Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
Investments measured at Cost 
(a) Subsidiaries :

(i) Investments in Equity Instruments (Unquoted), Fully Paid up

- Dorf Ketal Chemicals, LLC , USA 681  681  
 (6,61,000 Equity Shares (PY- 6,61,000) of $ 1 each fully paid up)

- Dorf Ketal Brasil LTDA 4  4  
 (1,89,74,586Equity Shares (PY - 1,70,33,005) of BRL 1 each fully paid up)

- Dorf Ketal B.V, Netherlands 341  341  
 (45,180 Equity Shares (PY - 45,180) of EUR 100 each fully paid up) 

-Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE 5  5  
 (1,973 Equity Shares (PY - 1973) of AED 150.00 each fully paid up)

- Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd 214  214  
 (4,029,833 Equity Shares (PY 4,029,833) of  SGD 1  each fully paid up)

(b) Associates :
(i) Investments in Equity Instruments (Unquoted), Fully Paid up

- Aritar Private Limited 3  3  
 (2,55,000 Equity Shares (PY Nil) of  Rs. 10 each fully paid up)

- Trentar Private Limited 7  
 (65,00,000 Equity Shares (PY Nil) of  Rs. 1 each fully paid up)

1,253   1,246   

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments 1,253   1,246   

Aggregate amount of impairment  in the value of investments

6   Other non -  current investments

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
(a) Investments in Equity Instrument (Unquoted), Fully Paid up.

- CETP, MIDC Taloja * -   -  
 (5  Equity Shares (PY - 5) of ₹ 100  each fully paid up)

- Bharat Co- operative Bank Ltd. * -   -  
 (25 Equity Shares (PY - 25) of ₹ 10 each fully paid up)

Total -  -  

Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments -   -   

Aggregate amount of impairment  in the value of investments
* represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million
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7    Non -  Current financial asset -  Loans (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Loans to Related parties:
(i) Secured, Considered Good
(ii) Unsecured, Considered Good

- Trentar Private Limited 67                      -                                   
- Aritar Private Limited 2                        -                                   

69                               -                                   

(b) Others
(i) Secured, Considered Good
(ii) Unsecured, Considered Good

-  Loans to Employees 53                      78                                    

Total 122                             78                                    

8    Non- Current financial Assets -  Others

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

 (a) In Term deposits with bank remaining maturity exceeding 12 months 32                      30                                    
 (b) Balance with bank to the extent held as margin money against bank guarantee and 
letter of credit 16                      11                                    

48                               41                                    

9    Income tax assets (net)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Advance income tax (net of provision) 147                    155                                  

147                             155                                  

10  Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Capital Advances -                     -                                   

(b) Advances Other than Capital Advances

(i) Indirect Tax balances/recoverable/credits 88                      98                                    
(ii) Advances to Staff and Other Advances 12                      10                                    

(c) Others

(i) Prepaid Lease Rental (Infrastructure Development Charges- Mundra SEZ) 47                      50                                    
Total                               147                                    158 
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11  Inventories (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(At Cost or Market Value whichever is lower)
(a) Raw Materials 2,240  1,205  
(b) Raw Materials in Transit 10  -  
(c) Packing Materials 87  76  
(d) Stock in Process -   3  
(e) Finished Goods 1,096  1,199  

Total 3,433  2,483  

(i) The mode of valuation of inventory has been stated in Note 1.3 (e)
(ii) Inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings (Refer note 24 )

12  Current  Investments

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
(a) Investments in Mutual Funds 1,522  200  

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 1,522  200  

13  Trade Receivables

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a)Trade Receivables considered good - Secured -   -  
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 4,253  3,571  

(Less:) Allowance as per Expected Credit Loss Model (1)  (1)  
Total 4,251  3,570  

14  Cash & Cash equivalents

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
(i) In Current Accounts 15  17  
(ii) In Foreign Currency Accounts 85  179  
(iii) Others (Balance in Cash Credit Accounts) 80  22  

(b) Cash on Hand 2  1  
(c) Term deposits with bank with original maturity of less than 3 months 1  2  

Total   184   220 
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15  Bank balances other then cash and cash equivalents (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Term deposits with bank original maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12
months 14    8 

(b) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money against bank guarantees
and letter of credit having original maturity less than 12 months 58    25 

Total 72  34  

16  Current financial assets -  loans

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Secured, considered good   -  

(a) Unsecured, considered good
 Balance with Customs, Central Excise etc.
 Security Deposits 36  35  

(ii) Others 0  (0)  
Advance for Capital Expenditure
(c) Significant increase in credit risk
(d) Credit impaired

Total 36  35  

17  Other Financial Assets

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

 Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedge 116  35  
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 1  2  
Recoverable from Old Filtra Owners 0  

(d) Mark to Mark Asset as per Bank (Derivative contract) 10  
Total 127  37  

zero represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

18  Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Advance Income Tax (Net of provision for taxation) (73)  (10)  

Total (73)  (10)  

19  Other Current Assets

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Advances other than capital advances
(i) Advances to related party
(i) Advance to staff 9  6  

(b) Others
(i) Balance with Customs, Central Excise etc. 436  393  
(ii) Prepaid expenses 24  18  
(iii) Prepaid Lease Rentals (Current Portion) 3  3  
(iv) Receivable from Leave Encashment Trust 7  5  

Total 480  425  
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20 Equity Share Capital (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

2,546                           2,546                                
5                                  5                                       

2,468                           1,763                                
2,468                           1,763                                

20.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 18                                18                                     
Add : Bonus Shares issued during the year* 7                                  

Equity Shares at the end of the year                                  25                                       18 

20.2 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Name of Promoter No. of Shares % of total holding

Mr. Sudhir Menon 96,653           0.39% 40%
Mr. Subodh Menon 49,200           0.20% 40%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Name of Promoter No. of Shares % of total holding

Mr. Sudhir Menon 69,038           0.39%                                   -   

Mr. Subodh Menon 35,143           0.20%                                   -   

20.3 Major shareholders holding  shares in the company

17,277,150                  17,277,150                       

6,910,860                

24,188,010              17,277,150                       

20.4 Rights of Shareholders
The Company has only one class of equity shareholders Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

The Company allotted 70,50,442 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of profits transferred from retained 
earnings amounting to `70.5 crore in the quarter ended 30th Jun, 2021, pursuant to an special resolution passed after taking the 
consent of shareholders

Authorised:
2,54,61,000 equity shares (Previous year 2,54,61,000 equity shares) of ₹ 100 each
5,40,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ₹ 10  each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :

24,676,548 equity shares (Previous 1,76,26,106 equity shares) of ₹ 100  each fully paid
Total

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st Mar, 2022 % of change during the 
year

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st Mar, 2021 % of change during the 
year

Particulars

Menon Family Holdings Trust

As at March 31, 2021

Changes in equity share capital

As at March 31, 2022
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21 Other Equity (Amt. in Million)

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

1,156  1,156  
1,156  1,156  

20  20  
20  20  

0  0  
0  0  

109  109  
109  109  

6,723  6,039  

237  
705  

1,007  684  
6,788  6,723  

4  (52)  
52  4  

52  
57  4  

(18)   (23)  

(5)   5  

(23)   (18)  

34  (14)  

237  
(G) 237  -  

8,343  7,994  

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

Particulars

(a) Securities Premium
Opening balance

(A)

(b) Capital Redemption reserve
Opening balance

(B)

(c) Amalgamation Reserve
Opening balance *

(C)

(d) General Reserve
Opening balance

(D)

(e) Retained Earnings/Surplus

Opening balance

Less: Utilised for issue of Bonus Share
Add: Profit for the year

Less: Transfer to Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve

(E)

(f) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedge
Opening balance
Add/(Less): Changes in Fair Value during the year
Add/(Less): Re-classified to Profit & Loss A/c during the year

(ii) Remeasurements of Defined Benefit ( Liability )  / Asset
Opening balance
Add/(Less): Remeasurements of Defined Benefit (Liability)/Asset during the 
year

Total Reserves & Surplus (A+B+C+D+E+F)

(F)

(g) Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve
Opening balance
Add/(Less): Transfer During Year
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22 Borrowings (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
Secured Loans

- From Banks
 '-Term Loans * 696  477  

  '- Other Loans

  '- Vehicle Loans ** (Secured against respective vehicles) 16  25  
712  502  

(b) Unsecured
(i) Loan from Related Party

- Loan from Directors -   -  
- Loan from Others -   -  

TOTAL 712  502  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

The Aggregate amount of Loan guaranteed by Directors in personal 
capacity

  -    477 

23 Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)  (net)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Opening Balance (427)   (468)  
Add/(Less) : Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) created during the year

(i) Ind AS Adjustments (net) (See Note 23.1 below) 25  34  

(ii) Other Adjustments (See Note 23.1 below) 5  12  
(iii) Other Adjustments (See Note 23.1 below)
MAT Credit entitlement during the year 147  (4)  
Add: Additions pursuant to Merger
Add: Additions pursuant to Merger
Total   (249)   (427)

* Term loan -  Rs. 386.69 Million (PY 2021 ₹ 194.96 Million) which is repayable within 12 months has been grouped under Current
financial liabilities -  Borrowings.

** Vehicle loan Rs.  9.19 Million  (PY 2021 ₹ 14.86 Million) which is repayable within 12 months has been grouped under Current 
financial liabilities -  Borrowings.
* Term loan - ECB Loan of USD 10 million  from Citibank is secured by first pari passu charge on Movable and Immovable fixed 
assets , both present and future of Mundra plant, Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant. ECB loan of USD 10 Million is repayable 
in 15 quarterly instalments starting from December 2019. 
* Term loan  of INR 22.33 Crore from J P Morgan is repayable in 10 quarterly instalments starting from  Dec 2021.Term Loan of INR
22.33 Crore is secured by first  charge on all fixed assets of Mundra plant, Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant. 

* Working Capital Term loan of  INR 37 Crore  from HSBC bank is secured by second charge on Movable Fixed Asset at Mundra
plant, Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant.  and second charge on Stock and Receivables. Working Capital Term Loan is 
repayable in 48 Monthly instalments starting from March 2022. 

* Term loan  of INR 28.37 Crore (Sanctioned 50 Crore) from HDFC is repayable in 14 quarterly instalments starting from  Sept 
2023.Term Loan of INR 50 Crore sanctioned (Drawdown 28.37 Crore) is secured by first  charge on all fixed assets of Mundra plant, 
Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant. 
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Note: 23.1. Impact on Ind AS Adjustments pertains to following items; (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Deferred Tax Asset
Remeasurement of Actuarial Gains/(Loss) to OCI (3)                                                                         3 
MTM of Derivatives of Cash Flow Hedge 28                                                                      31 
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivable * (0)                                                                         1 

Deferred Tax Liability
Reversal of DTL                                        -   

                                 25                                       34 

Note: 23.1. Other Adjustments pertains to following items;

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Deferred Tax Asset (DTA)
Depreciation
Gratuity/Bonus/ Leave encashment                                  -                                       (11)
Amalgamation Exp *                                         0 

Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation                                    5                                       23 

                                   5                                       12 

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

22.1 Non -  Current financial liabilities

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Others
Lease Liability 36                                36                                     

                                 36                                       36 

24 Current financial liabilities -  Borrowings

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Secured
(i) Loans From Bank (Repayable on demand)

- Foreign Currency Demand Loans -                               968                                   
- Working Capital Demand Loans 2,156                           60                                     

(b) Current Maturities of long term debt 387                              195                                   
(c) Current maturities of finance lease obligations 9                                  15                                     

TOTAL 2,552                           1,238                                

Working Capital loans from Banks are secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets of the 
Mundra, Dahej, Filtra & Dadra Plant.
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25 Trade Payables (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 52 ) 8  16  

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises (Refer Note below) (Refer Note 52) 1,367  1,067  

Total 1,376  1,084  

Notes

26 Other current financial liabilities

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Current Maturities of long term debt
(b) Current maturities of finance lease obligations
(c) Creditors for Capital Expenditure
(d) Mark to Mark liability as per Bank (Derivative contract) 10  

Total -   10  

27 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a)  Other Payables:
- Statutory Dues 59  85  
- Liabilities for Expense 166  59  
- Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedge -   -  
- Others (35)   (6)  
- Interest Accured but not due

Total   190   137 

28 Provisions

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Provision for Employee Benefits 608  460  
Others -   -  
Total 608  460  

(i) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the management, same is relied upon by the Auditors

(ii) There were no dues outstanding to MSME as on March 31, 2022  exceeding 45 days and hence Company is not liable to pay 
any interest on the outstanding figures.
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29 Revenue from operations (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

(a) Sale of products (including Excise Duty)
Domestic Sales 6,013  4,402   
Trading Sales 5  -  
Export Sales 11,047  7,597   

(b) Sale of services

Service Income 157  130  
Total 17,222  12,129   

30 Other Income

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

(a) Interest
Interest on Fixed Deposits 4  4  
Interest on Loan 1  6  

5  10  

(b) Dividend
From Long Term Investments 430  128  

430  128  

(c) Other non-operating Income
Profit / (Loss) on sale of fixed assets (Net) * 0  (1)  
Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Mutual Fund 14  (0)  
Rental Income * 0  0  
Miscellaneous Income 61  105  
Exchange differences with reference to hedge 102  43  
Mark to Market Impact on Derivative 15  12  

192  159  

Total 627   296  

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

31  Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Opening Inventory 1,281  1,398   
Add: Purchases 11,853  7,574   
Less: Closing Inventory 2,337  1,281   

10,798  7,690   
Purchases of Stock-in-trade -   
Total 10,798   7,690   
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32  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-Process -   3  
Finished goods 1,096  1,199   

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-Process * 3   0  
Finished goods 1,199  999  
Total 105  (203)  

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

33  Employee benefit expense

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Salaries and Wages 2,027  1,688   
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 29  26  
Staff Welfare Expenses 26  21  
Total 2,082   1,735   

34  Finance Costs

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

(a) Interest
On Working Capital Loans 44  9  
On Foreign Currency Loans - Packing Credit 45  31  
On Foreign Currency Loans - Buyers Credit * 0  2  
On Foreign Currency Loans - Secured Long Term 2  13  
On Other Loans 3  3  

(b) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost
(c) Other Borrowing Costs

Amortization of borrowings * -   0  
Bank Charges 9  12  
Hedge Cost On Interest- Foreign Currency Loans 13  19  
Mark to Market Impact on Derivative
Other Interest 2  3  

Total 118   92  

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

35  Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Depreciation and Amortisation (Net) 366  361  
Total 366   361  
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36  Other expenses (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Stores and Consumables 72  69  
Power, Fuel and Water Charges 368  261  
Labour Cost 224  197  
Repairs-

Building 7  8  
Plant and Machinery 119  75  
Others 7  6  

Testing Charges 7  4  
Rent 55  50  
Health, Safety & Environment related Expenses 32  18  
Miscellaneous Manufacturing Expenses 175  162  
Payments to Auditors 4  4  
Electricity Expenses 5  5  
Telephone Expenses 11  12  
Conveyance and Travelling 113  81  
Printing and Stationary 5  3  
Training and Recruitment Charges 7  3  
Legal and Professional Charges 108  53  
Insurance 41  33  
Rent, Rates and Taxes 32  28  
Computers and Networking Charges 37  31  
Office Expenses 53  30  
Exchange Difference (net) (57)   26  
Corporate Social Responsibility 16  12  
Political Contribution -   -  
Other Administrative expenses 59  64  
Advertising and Publicity * 0  0  
Business Promotion Expenses 30  13  
Commission 9  14  
Clearing, Forwarding & Transportation 1,238  463  
Bad Debts * -   0  
Allowance as per ECL Model 1  (3)  
Others 16  30  
Research  & Development (R&D)  Expenses 79  73  
Royalty 2  

Total 2,875   1,827   

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

36.1 Exceptional Items

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Impairment Loss of non-current investment -   95  
Profit on Sale of Non- Current Investment -   (1)  
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset (Taloja) 162  
Total 162   94  

37  Payments to Auditors

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

As Auditors
Statutory Audit Fees 2  2  
Tax Audit Fees 1  1  
Cost Audit Fees * 0  0  
Other Services 1  1  
Total 4   4  
* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million
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38  R & D Expenses (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Costs of Lab Materials Consumed * 0  0  
Lab Consumables 12  13  
Payments & Benefits to Employees 50  46  
Travelling & Conveyance 1  0  
Other Overheads Expenses 16  13  
Total 79   73  

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

39  Taxation

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Current Tax 184  136  
Deferred Tax 5  13  
MAT Credit (Entitlement)/Utilisation 147  (4)  
Other Taxes * 0  1  
Total 336   145  

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

40 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
There are no potential equity shares and hence the basic and diluted EPS are the same.

(a) Profit attributable to Equity holders of Company

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted 
earnings per share   1,054   745 

(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Particulars
 For year ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For year ended  
March 31, 2021 

Number of issued equity shares at April 01   18   18 

Effect of shares issued   7 

Nominal value per share   100   100 
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for basic and diluted 
earnings per shares 23  18  

(c) Basic and Diluted earnings per share (in Rs) {(a)/(b)} ₹ 46.00 ₹ 42.28

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year, as under:
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41 Financial Instruments

A. Capital Management

Its guiding principles
i) Maintenance of financial strength to ensure the highest ratings;
ii) Ensure financial flexibility and diversify sources at financing;
iii) Manage Company exposure in forex to mitigate risks to earnings;
iv)

The Capital gearing ratio (%) or Debt to equity Ratio at the end of the reporting period are as under:
(Amt. in Million)

Particulars

 As at
March 31, 2022 

 As at
March 31, 2021 

Total borrowings 3,264  1,740  
Less: Cash and bank balances  256  254 

Net debts  3,008  1,486 

Total equity  10,811  9,757 
Capital gearing ratio (%) or Debt to equity Ratio 27.83% 15.23%

B. Valuation

i)
ii)

iii) All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date.
iv) The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is as:

- Carrying amount of "Current Financial Instruments" is considered as its Fair Value as it approximates their fair
value largely due to short term maturities of these financial instruments

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to ensure that the Company is able to continue as going
concern to sustain future development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The fair value of Forward Foreign Exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance 
sheet date.

The policy is also adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial and 

Leverage optimally in order to maximum shareholders returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of the 
balance sheet.

The fair value of investment in quoted Equity shares and Mutual funds is measured at quoted price or NAV
All financial instruments are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value as described below:

Amounts in Rs.



C. Fair value measurement hierarchy: (Amt. in Million)
Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(a) Financial Assets

(i) At Amortised Cost
- Loan (Current and Non current) 158   113   
- Term Deposit and Margin Money (Non
current portion) 48   41   

- Trade receivables 4,251  3,570  
- Cash and cash equivalents 184   220   
- Bank balances other then cash and cash
equivalents 72   34   
- Others Financial Assets 1   2   

(ii) At FVOCI
- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contracts designated as Cash Flow
Hedge 116   116   35   35   

(iii) At FVTPL
- Investments in Equity Instruments
(Unquoted) -  -  -  -  
- Investments in MUTUAL Funds
(Quoted) 1,522  1,522  200   200   
- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contracts designated as Fair Value
Hedge 10   10   -  

(b) Financial Liabilities
(i) At Amortised Cost

- Borrowings (Current and Non current) 3,264  1,740  
- Trade Payables 1,376  1,084  
- Other Financial Liabilities -  -  

(ii) At FVTPL

- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contract designated as Cash Flow Hedge -  -  -  -  

- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contract designated as Fair value Hedge

-  -  10   10   

 As at March 31, 2021 

 Carrying Amount 

 Level of input used in 
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 As at March 31, 2022 

 Carrying Amount 

 Level of input used in 



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Particulars Unquoted Equity

As at April 1, 2021 * -  
Gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income -  
As at March 31, 2022 * -  
* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but fair value disclosures are required)

Carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, margin money and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other
current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their fair value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments

The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
i)  Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
ii) Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. In the case of the mutual funds are valued using the
closing NAV. In the case of Derivative contracts, the Company has valued the same using the forward exchange rate as at the reporting date.

iii) Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3. The
Company owns unlisted equity shares in companies, which are non-profit companies providing facilities for treating effluents generated during its manufacturing process. In the absence of any
observable market data in relation to the said companies, the same have been categorised as Level 3. Considering the objective of investment and materiality, its fair value have been considered same as
cost as at the reporting date.
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42 Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
A) Credit risk;
B) Liquidity risk;
C) Market risk; and

A. Credit risk

(i) Trade and other receivables

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;
ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty;
iii)

iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty;
v)

Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.
Ageing for trade receivables – current outstanding as at March 31, 2022

(Amt. in Million)

Less than 6 
months

6 months- 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

4,145                 71                             17                   -                       19                        4,253                   

-                     -                           -                 -                       -                       -                       

-                     -                           -                 -                       -                       -                       

-                     -                           -                 -                       -                       -                       

-                     -                           -                 -                       -                       -                       

-                     -                           -                 -                       -                       -                       
4,145                 71                             17                   -                       19                        4,253                   

Less : Allowances for ECL * -                     0                               0                     -                       1                          1                          

Net Trade Receivable 4,145                 71                             17                   -                       18                        4,251                   

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which 
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-credit 
Impaired

Particulars

(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by 
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk 
assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
Company’s activities.

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable- 
credit impaired

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans investment in debt
securities and other financial assets. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful trade receivables and impairment that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments covered below is restricted to their respective
carrying amount.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. 

The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations. The Company also enters into derivative transactions.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer and including the default risk of the industry, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information such as:

Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations;

Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or
credit enhancements.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the
business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends.

Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment
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Ageing for trade receivables – current outstanding as at March 31, 2021
(Amt. in Million)

Less than 6 
months

6 months- 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

3,447   93   12   14   3,567   

  -  -    -  -    -  -  

-   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   4   4   

-   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -   
3,447   93   -   12   18   3,571   

Less : Allowances for ECL -   -   -   -   -   1   

Net Trade Receivable 3,447   93   -   12   18   3,570   

(ii) Investment in debt securities

Investment in debt securities are in mutual funds.

(iii) Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted/ Unquoted)

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

(v) Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

(vi) Other Financial Assets

These assets represents balances receivables in nature of Insurance Claim , Interest accrued on Term/ Fixed Deposits
The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

(vii) Derivatives

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables-credit 
Impaired

Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable- 
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

Particulars

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which
have significant increase in credit risk

The derivative contracts are entered into with scheduled banks which have good credit ratings.  Further exposures to counter-
parties are closely monitored and kept within the approved limits

The Company helds Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents of ₹ 120 Million as at March 31, 2022 (₹ 75 Million as
at March 31, 2021)These balances represents term deposits having original maturity more than 3 -12 months; term deposits with
remaining maturity more than 12 months on the reporting date & Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money
against Bank guarantees and letter of credit for the period having original maturity between 3 - 12 months as well as remaining
maturity more than 12 months on the reporting date.
The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with good credit ratings and financial institution counterparties with good
market standing 

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have
a good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not
have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

The Company held Cash and Cash Equivalents of ₹ 184 Million as at March 31, 2022 (₹ 220 Million as at March 31, 2021) . The
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of Cash on Hand, Term Deposits having original maturity less than 3 months and Banks
Balances.

The Cash and Cash Equivalents representing term deposits less than original maturity less than 3 months and the Bank
Balances are held with banks. The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with good credit ratings and financial
institution counterparties with good market standing

Investment in Equity Instruments are Unquoted Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures as well as Unquoted 
Equity of Bharat Co-operative Bank Ltd.
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B. Liquidity Risk

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital facilities from various domestic as well as foreign banks.

Exposure to liquidity risk (Amt. in Million)

Upto 1 year > 1 year Upto 1 year > 1 year

712  - 712 502  - 502 
2,552  2,552  - 1,238 1,238  - 
1,376  1,376  - 1,084 1,084  - 

-  -  -  - -  - 

4,640 3,928 712 2,823 2,321 502

0 0 -  10 10 -  

-  -  -  10  10  -  

4,640  3,928  712  2,833  2,331  502  

As at March 31, 2022
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows

(b) MTM Value of Derivatives Contracts -
Designated as Cash Flow Hedges

Total Financial Liabilities (A) + (B)

(B)

(a) MTM Value of Derivatives Contracts -
Designated as Fair Value Hedges

(B) Derivative Financial Liabilities

As at March 31, 2021

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of 
Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-
term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash 
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of Derivative financial liabilities & Non - Derivative Liabilities at the reporting 
date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments as and where applicable-

(A) Non Derivative Financial Liabilities

(a) Non-Current Borrowings
(b) Current Borrowings
(c) Trade Payables
(d) Others

(A)

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows

Particulars



(Amt. in Million)
Particulars

Upto 1 year > 1 year Upto 1 year > 1 year

(A) Non Derivative
Financial Assets

(a) Investments 1,522  - 1,522 200  - 200 
(b) Trade receivables 4,251  4,251  - 3,570  3,570  - 
(c) Cash and cash
equivalents 184  184  -  220  220  -  

(d) Bank balances other
then cash and cash 
equivalents 72  72  -  34  34  -  
(e) Loans 36  36  -  35  35  -  
(f) Others Financial Assets 1  1  -  2  2  -  
(g) Long Term Borrowings 122  - 122 78  -  78  
(i) Others Non Current 
Financial Assets 48  -  48  41  -  41  

(A) 6,237  4,545  1,692  4,181  3,861  319  

(B) Derivative 
Financial Assets

(a) Derivatives Instruments 116  116  -  35  35  -  

10  10  

(B) 126  126  -  35  35  -  

Total Financial Assets
(A) + (B) 6,363  4,671  1,692  4,215  3,896  319  

Net Gains (Losses) on fair value changes (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2022
As at March 31, 

2021

Investments classified at FVTPL 1,522  200  
Investments Designated at FVTPL -  -  
Derivatives at FVTPL 10  10-    

-  -  
Reclassification adjustments -  -  

-  -  
Others(to be specified) -  -  

24  10  

(b) MTM Value of Derivatives Contracts - 
Designated as Fair Value Hedges

As at March 31, 2022
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows

As at March 31, 2021
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows

Other Financial Instruments designated at 
FVTPL

Reliased gainon Debt investments 
classified as FVOCI

Total Net Gain (Losses) on Fair Value 
Changes

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its Non-Derivative financial assets and Derivative Financial 
Assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that 
will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand 
the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
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C. Market Risk

(a) Currency Risk

Hedge Accounting

Currency risk-Transactions in foreign currency

Interest Rate Risk

The company doesn't have any interest rate risk w.r.t. Hedge for Transactions in Foreign Currency

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Currency risk, Interest
rate risk and Other price risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Company operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the
Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in the United States, Middle East, Singapore, Malaysia and elsewhere,
and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies may
fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are affected positively/adversely as the
rupee appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from these transactions 
and enters into foreign exchange Derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.
The Company follows established risk management policies, to hedge forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currency. The
Company has designated certain derivative instruments as cash flow hedges to mitigate the foreign exchange exposure of forecasted
highly probable cash flows.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic
relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the
effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which they were designated. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured as
described below:
Cash flow hedges:
Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in other comprehensive
income and held in cash flow hedging reserve, net of taxes, a component of equity, to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent
that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and reported within foreign exchange
gains/(losses), net within results from operating activities. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the
cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective
remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the
cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the statement of income upon the occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If the
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, such cumulative balance is immediately recognised in the statement of income.
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Disclosures of Effects of Hedge Accounting

A. Fair Value Hedge
(i) Hedging Instrument (Amt. in Million)

Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV
Assets Liabilities

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
 Forward Contracts 9  9-   Other Financial Assets 
 Forward Contracts(Loans) -  Other Financial Assets
 Option Contracts -   -    Other Financial Assets 
 Interest Rate Swap 3  3   Other Financial Assets 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -   -   -   -  

(ii) Hedging Item
Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV

Assets Liabilities Asset / (Liability)

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
Long term loans(ECB & FCNR) 303  3-      Borrowings 
Trade Receivables 1,577  9    Trade Receivables 
Trade Payables   Trade Payables 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -   -   -   -  

B. Cash Flow Hedge
(i) Hedging Instrument

Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV
Assets Liabilities Asset / (Liability)

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
 Forward Contracts 101.52  102   Other Financial Assets 
 Option Contracts 13.99  14   Other Financial Assets 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -   

(ii) Hedging Item
Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Highly Probable Exports 116  116  
 Other Comprehensive Income- 

Other Equities 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -   -   -  

Carrying Amount Line item in Balance Sheet

 Line item in Balance Sheet Hedging Reserve

Carrying Amount Line item in Balance Sheet

Carrying Amount  Line item in Balance Sheet 



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the respective reporting dates -

(Amt. in Million)
Particulars

Amount in FC * Amount in INR
(a) Trade Payables

USD 6  440  
EUR ** 0  12  
CNY ** 0  1  

(b) Foreign currency loan
Foreign currency loan (Liability)

USD 3  253  

(c) Export Trade Receivables

EUR 7  562  
USD 20  1,488  
CNY 9  106  
KWD ** 0  27  
MYR 9  171  

Particulars
Amount in FC * Amount in INR

(a) Trade Payables
USD 4  299  
EUR 1  55  

(b) Foreign currency loan
Packing Credit/ Buyer's Credit

EUR
USD

Foreign currency loan (Liability)
USD 6  439  

Foreign currency loan (Asset)
USD
CHF

(c) Export Trade Receivables
EUR 2  194  
USD 11  817  
CNY 6  70  
KWD -   -  
MYR 5  82  

* FC - Foreign Currency
** represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million

 As at March 31, 2021 

 As at March 31, 2022 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
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43 Employee benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

A. Change in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2021 

1) Opening present value of Defined Benefit obligation 78                              75                              
2) Current Service Cost 8                                8                                
3) Past Service Cost 
4) Interest Cost 5                                5                                
5) Benefits paid (7)                               (3)                               
6) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation - Change in Financial Assumptions (3)                               0                                
7) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation - Due to Experience 10                              (8)                               
8)

(0)                               
9) Closing present value of obligation 92                              78                              

The Company makes contributions towards Provident Fund, ESIC & MLW Fund to defined contribution retirement benefit
plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund contributions are made to Government administered Employees
Provident Fund. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a
specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.
The Company recognised Rs. 3 million for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Rs. 3 million for the year ended March 31, 2021)
for Provident Fund, ESIC & MLW Fund contributions included in Employee Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

The Company makes annual contributions to Gratuity Fund which is administered by the Trustees of the fund, the board of
trustees decide about the further investment of the corpus available to be invested. For any reason if the return on
investment is lesser than the contribution required to be made as per actuarial valuation such deficiency shall be made good
by the company. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation

The company also has a benefit plan with respect to Accumulating Leave Absences (Privilege Leave). The obligation for
Leave Encashment is recognised in the same manner as Gratuity. The company has also provided long term compensated
absences which are unfunded.
The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial
statements as at respective dates

Particulars

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in
 Demographic Assumptions



B. Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets during the year ended;

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) Fair value of plan assets as at Beginning of Period 76  56  
2) Expected return on plan assets (1)  (0)  
3) Contributions made 2  19  
4) Benefits paid (7)  (3)  
5) Interest income 5  4  
6) Actuarial gain / (Loss) on plan assets -  -  
7) Fair value of plan assets as at End of Period 76  76  

C. Expenses recognised during the period:

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) In Income Statement 8  10  
2) In Other Comprehensive Income 7  (7)  
3) Total Expenses recognised during the period 16  2  

D. Net employee benefits expenses recognized in the employee cost

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) Current Service Cost 8  8  
2) Past Service Cost -  -  
3) Interest Cost on benefit obligation 0  1  
4) Total Expenses recognised during the period 8  10  

E.

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
2) Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3)  0  
3) Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience variance 10  (8)  
3)  Actuarial changes arising from changes in Change in Demographic Assumptions (0)       -  
4) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense 1  0  
5) Total Expenses recognised during the period 7  (7)  

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



F. Net Assets / (Liability) as at Balance Sheet Date

 As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

1) Closing  Present value of the defined benefit obligation (92)  (78)  
2) Closing Fair value of plan Assets 76  76  

3) Net Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (16)   (2)  

G. Actual return on plan assets for the year ended:

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) Expected return on plan assets (1)  (0)  
2) Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets -  -  

3) Actual return on plan assets (1)  (0)  

H. The major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows:

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

Insurance Funds 100% 100%
Others 0% 0%

I. Assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment for the Company’s plan are shown below :

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) Discount rate Current Year 7.27% 6.87%
2) Discount rate Previous  Year 7.27% 6.87%
3) Salary growth rate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
4) Attrition Rate Service < 5  8.6%  

Service >= 5  2%
Service < 5  8.6%  
Service >= 5  2%

5) Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality
 2012-14 (Urban)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality

 (2006-08) Ultimate
6) Mortality Rate After Employment N.A N.A

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) No's.   752   783 
2) Per Month Salary For Active Members (Rs.) 22,505,799   25,054,524   
3) Weighted average duration of DBO 11  11  
4) Future Service (yrs.) 15  15  
5) Projected Benefit Obligation 78,422,131   75,450,438   
6) Prescribed Contribution for Next Year (12 months) 10,714,664   25,054,524   

J. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) 1st Following Year 8,981,335  9,079,754  
2) 2nd Following Year 4,232,831  2,323,695  
3) 3rd Following Year 7,072,709  4,073,512  
4) 4th Following Year 5,168,062  5,976,455  
5) 5th Following Year 5,294,795  5,684,177  
6) Sum of Years 6 to 10 46,529,171   33,186,937   
7) Sum of Years 11 & above 124,787,310   109,395,073   

K. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Employer
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) 1st Following Year -  -  
2) 2nd Following Year -  -  
3) 3rd Following Year -  -  
4) 4th Following Year -  -  
5) 5th Following Year -  -  
6) Sum of Years 6 to 10 -  -  
7) Sum of Years 11 & above -  -  

Sensitivity Analysis
Quantitative Disclosures

  For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

  For the year Ended
March 31, 2021 

1) Projected Benefit Obligation on basis of Current Assumptions   92   78 

2) Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Discounting (7,317,031)  (6,520,944)  
3) Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Discounting 8,477,475  7,598,405  

4) Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Salary Increase 7,517,246  7,098,221  
5) Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Salary Increase (6,732,546)  (6,265,211)  

6) Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Employee Turnover 1,616,351  1,169,671  
7) Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Employee Turnover (1,834,900)  (1,332,136)  

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption and quantitive impact on Defined Benefit Obligation as at
March 31, 2022 is as shown below:

Particulars

The Sensitivity Analysis is determined based on reasonable possible changes of respective assumptions occurring at the end
of reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of actual change in projected benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change is assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

Furthermore in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of projected benefit obligation has been
calculated using Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of reporting period, which is the same method as applied in
calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the Balance Sheet.

There was no change in methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years



Qualitative Disclosures
Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan

Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans

 Para 147 (a)

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset
is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments
in government securities, and other debt instruments.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final
salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.
The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending
on the duration of asset.
Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines
of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.
Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does
not have any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a
default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow
regulatory guidelines.

During the year, the company has changed the benefit scheme in line with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 by increasing
monetary ceiling from 10 lakhs to 20 lakhs. Change in liability (if any) due to this scheme change is recognised as past
service cost.

A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided
by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962. 
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44 Related party disclosures

(i) Name of Related Party and the nature of Relationship
(a) Subsidiary Companies

Dorf Ketal Chemicals, LLC, USA.
Dorf Ketal Brasil LTDA
Dorf Ketal B.V. (Netherlands)
Dorf Ketal Chemical AG
       (Liquidated during the year 2020-21)
Dorf Ketal Chemicals (M) Sdn (Step Down Subsidiary)
Dorf Ketal Specialty Chemicals Sdn. Bhd. (Step Down Subsidiary)
Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd
Dorf Ketal Chemicals Shanghai Ltd (Step Down Subsidiary)
Dorf Ketal FZE

(b) Associate Company
Aritar Private Limited
Trentar Private Limited

(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Sudhir V. Menon Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Subodh V. Menon Director
Mr. Mahesh Subramaniyam Director
Mrs. Padmaja Menon Director
Mr. Perumangode Ramaswamy Director
Mr. Vijayaraghava Aniparambil Menon Director
Mr. Pramod Menon Director
Mr. Yogesh Ranade Director
Mr. Vijaykumar Malpani Group Finance Controller
Mr. Rajdeep Shahane Company Secretary 

(d) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence.
Yaap Digital Pvt Ltd
Yaap Digital FZE
FFC Information Solution Pvt Ltd
Brand Planet Consultants India Pvt Ltd
Intnt Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
Oplifi Digital Pvt Ltd
Lajawaab Foods Pvt.Ltd
Fobeoz India Private Limited.
GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
TM Aerospace Pvt. Ltd.
Trishula Advanced Composites and Electronics Private Limited

(e) Employment benefit plan
Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Employee's Gratuity Fund.
Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Employee's Group Leave Encashment Fund.
Yaap Employees Welfare Trust
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(ii) Transactions with Related Parties (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
(a) Subsidiary Companies

Sale of Goods 8989 6005
Purchase of Goods 34 118
Management Sharing Fees received 60
Dividend 430 128
Interest income 5
Re-imbursement of Expenses 26 6
Recovery of Expenses 30 18
Royalty Paid 1 0
Customer Compensation 6
Unsecured Loans Received / Repaid (Net) 187
Corporate Guarantee Commission Received 6 16
Investments -39
Impairment Loss on Investments 4
Impairment Loss on Loans and Advances 59
Exceptional Items 32

(b) Associate Companies
Investment 7 3
Interest income 1 0
Recovery of Expenses * 0 0
Rent Received * 0 0

(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Remuneration 1292 993
Professional Fees 1 1
Rent Paid 14 9

(d) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to 
exercise significant influence.

Sale of Fixed Assets 1
Purchase of Fixed Assets 1
Management Sharing Fees received 12
Recovery of Expenses 1 1
Rent Received * 0 0
Business Promotion Expense/ Staff Welfare 6 2
Advertisement Charges 1 2

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million
Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (i) above, in ordinary course of business

(iii) Balance Outstanding of Related Parties (Amt. in Million)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 
(a) Subsidiary Companies

Investments 1244 1244
Trade Receivables 3601 2250
Advances recd 1326 0
Creditors 77 54

(b) Associate Companies
Investments 9  3  
Unsecured Loans Given / Repaid (Net) 69  

(c)Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence.

  Receivables 4 4
  Advance to Sundry Creditors 11 10
  Loans & Advances 4 4

Creditors * 0 0

* represents value lee than Rs.0.5 Million
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45 Tax Expense
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss (Amt. in Million)

 March 31, 
2022  March 31, 2021 

Current tax expense (A)
Current year (incl adjustment of MAT Credit if any) 184   136  
Short/(Excess) provision of earlier years 0   1  

Deferred tax expense (B)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 152   9  

Tax expense recognised in the income statement (A+B)   336   147 

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Before tax Tax
(expense)

benefit

Net of tax Before tax Tax
(expense)

benefit

Net of tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 7   (3) 5 (7) 3  (5)  
Cash Flow Hedge Derivatives (81) 28 (52) (87) 31  (57)  

(73) 26 (48) (95) 33   (61)  

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars
% Amounts % Amounts

Profit before tax 1,342  829  
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 34.94 469  34.94 290  
Tax effect of:

Exempted Income -8.18 -110 -3.07 -25
Income Taxable at Special Rates -1.50 -20 -1.34 -11
Deduction u/s 10AA -6.04 -81 -13.91 -115
Deduction u/chpt VI-A 0.00 0 -0.40 -3
Allowances Allowed under IT Act 5.74 77 -1.08 -9
MAT (balance figure) -11.24 -151 1.28 11
Effective income tax rate 13.72  184  16.42   136  

 For the year ended Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
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46 Ind AS 115 Disclosure

1. Disaggregate Revenue (Refer note 46)
(Amt. in Million)

2. Reconciliation between revenue with customers and contracted price:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2022

Year ended 
31 March 2021

Revenue as per contracted price 17,439  12,315  
Less: Adjustments
Sales return 217  186  
Discounts/ Rebates
Revenue from contracts with Customers 17,222  12,129  

3. Sales by performance obligations

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2022

Year ended 
31 March 2021

Upon Shipment 17,222  12,129  
Upon Delivery -  -  
Total 17,222  12,129  

4. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables from contracts with customers:
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Trade receivables 4,253  3,571  
Allowance as per Expected credit loss model 1  1  
Total 4,251  3,570  

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 180 days.
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Contract liability
Advances from Customers

The Contract liability outstanding at the beginning of the year has been recognised as
revenue during the year ended March 31, 2022.
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47 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Amt. in Million)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(I) Contingent liabilities 
 (a) In respect of Income Tax matters 22                                     22                                  

 (b) Other Matters :

- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt;
     Excise,Service Tax and customs matters -                                    0                                    
     Sales Tax/VAT matters
 - Others

(c) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees; 
and

-In respect of Bank Guarantees 991                                   595                                
-In respect of Letter of Credit 504                                   138                                

758                                   1,024                             

758                                   731                                

303                                   512                                

227                                   366                                

451                                   459                                

474                                   -                                 

5                                       10                                  
-                                 

4,493                                3,855                             

-In respect of Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Exim 
Bank for working capital facilities to its Subsidiary M/s Dorf 

-In respect of Corporate Guarantee issued In favour of Citibank 
for SBLC extended to its Ultimate Subsidiary Dorf Ketal 

Note: The company has been advised that the demand is likely to be either deleted or substantially reduced and 
accordingly no provision is considered necessary.

-In respect of Corporate Guarantee issued In favour of Citibank 
for SBLC extended to its Subsidiary Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE, 

-In respect of Corporate Guarantee issued In favour of Citibank 
for SBLC extended to its Ultimate Subsidiary Dorf Ketal B.V, 

-In respect of Material Imported under Advance License against 
which pro-rata Export Obligations is pending.

(d) Other money for which the company is contingently liable
Total

-In respect of Corporate Guarantee issued In favour of HSBC for 
SBLC extended to its Subsidiary Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE, 

-In respect of Corporate Guarantee issued In favour of JPMC for 
SBLC extended to its Ultimate Subsidiary Dorf Ketal Brazil Ltda.
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48 Segment Information:
Business Segment:
The Company has only one identifiable Business Segment i.e. Chemicals.

Geographic Segment:
The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers.

(Amt. in Million)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Revenue from Domestic Market 5,404  4,896  
Revenue from Overseas Market 11,818  7,233  

Total 17,222  12,129  

49 Leases
A. Leases as Lessee
I. Finance lease
(i) Vehicles

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

Not later than one year 9 15
Later than one year but not later than five years 16 25
More than five years 0 0

Total 25 40

(ii) Land Leases

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

(i) Gross Carrying Amount   405   405 
(ii) Accumulated depreciation   40   32 
(iii) Depreciation/Amortisation recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss     9   9 
(iv) Balance at the end of year 356  364  

The Company has vehicles on non-cancellable finance lease for periods ranging from 12 months to 60 months. 
The net future minimum lease payments outstanding as at reporting date under the said lease agreements are as under:

1. The Company has common assets for producing goods for Domestic markets and Overseas Markets. Hence, separate
figures for assets/additions to fixed assets and liabilities cannot be furnished.

The company has finance lease arrangements for various Land leases. The carrying amount of these assets are shown
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50 Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR):
(a)
(b) CSR Expenditure during the year:

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Education 5 8
Arts & Culture 2 1
Health 1 1
Skill Development 0 0
Sports Development 0 0
Covid-19 8 0
Total 16   12  

51  Fixed assets includes Research and Development (R&D) assets Gross Block as under:-

Particulars  Building – 
Factory  Plant & Machinery  Furniture & Fixtures 

As on 31st March, 2021 9   155  9  
Additions 1  
As on 31st March, 2022 9   156  9  

52 Micro, Small and medium enterprises

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

8  16  
-   -   

-   -   
-   -   

Total Interest accrued and remained unpaid at year end

Ageing for trade payable – current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 (Amt. in Million)

upto 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

(i) MSME 8   -   -   -   8   
(ii) Others 1,367   -   -   -   1,367   
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -  -   -   -   -  
(iv) Disputed dues-others -  -   -   -   -  

1,376  -   -   -  1,376  

Ageing for trade payable – current outstanding as at March 31, 2021 (Amt. in Million)

upto 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

(i) MSME 16   -   -   -   16   
(ii) Others 1,045   -   1  21  1,067   
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME -  -   -   -   -  
(iv) Disputed dues-others -  -   -   -   -  

1,061  -   1  21  1,084  

CSR  amount required to be spent by the companies is as per section 135 of the companies act 2013 read with schedule VII 

* (i) There were no dues outstanding to MSME as on March 31, 2021  exceeding 45 days and hence Company is not liable 
to pay any interest on the outstanding figures.

To the extent, the Corporation has received intimation from the “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under:

Amount Due and Payable at the year end
- Principal
- Interest on above Principal
Payment made during the year after the due date
- Principal
- Interest on above Principal
Interest due and payable for Principal already paid

Particulars

Particular
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Figures in Rupees

Particular
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)
53 Borrowings secured against current assets (Amt. in Million)

Quarter Name of Bank Particulars of Securities 
Provided

Amount as per books 
of accounts

Amounts reported 
in the quarterly 

return/statements

Amount of 
Difference

Jun-21

Citi Bank , J P 
Morgan , HSBC 

Bank, ICICI Bank, 
Kotak Bank, DBS 

Bank

Inventory and Trade 
Receivables

5,276 5,276 0.00

Sep-21

Citi Bank , J P 
Morgan , HSBC 

Bank, ICICI Bank, 
Kotak Bank, DBS 

Bank

Inventory and Trade 
Receivables

6,169 6,169 0.00

Dec-21

Citi Bank , J P 
Morgan , HSBC 

Bank, ICICI Bank, 
Kotak Bank, DBS 

Bank

Inventory and Trade 
Receivables

6,768 6,768 0.00

Mar-22

Citi Bank , J P 
Morgan , HSBC 

Bank, ICICI Bank, 
Kotak Bank, DBS 

Bank

Inventory and Trade 
Receivables

7,157 7,157 0.00

 Working Capital Facility availed from banks under multiple banking arrangement.

54
55 Approval of Financial Statements

The above financial statements are approved by Board of Directors on  24th Jun 2022.

For  NGPC &  CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 145474W

Partner Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Mumbai Chairman 
and 

Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

UDIN: 22101536ALUUHW7183 Managing  Director
Mem No: 101536 DIN: 02487658 DIN:00972842
Date: 24th Jun 2022 Date: 24th Jun 2022

Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the classification of Current year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PVT LTD. 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of 

DORF-KETAL CHEMICALS INDIA PVT LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, its associates and jointly controlled entities, 

(collectively referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet 

as at 31st March, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended and 

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 

Consolidated  Financial Statements including a summary of the significant accounting 

policies (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated  Financial Statements”). 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate 

financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give 

the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 

Group, its associates and joint ventures as at March 31, 2022, their consolidated 

profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the 

consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards 

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. 
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Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but 

does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditors’ Report 

thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility 

is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other 

information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard. 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance  

for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 

presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of 

the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash flows and changes in 

equity of the Group in  accordance  with  the  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  

in  India,  including  the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The respective Board of Directors of the companies 

included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of assets of the Group and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of 

preparation of the Consolidated  Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding 

Company, as aforesaid.  
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In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors 

of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the 

Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a Going 

Concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to Going Concern and using Going 

Concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its 

associates and jointly controlled entities. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated 

Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SA’s will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 

to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and jointly controlled 

entities to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 

that achieves fair presentation. 
 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 

the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 

consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such 

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 

independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial 

statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out 

by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 

entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matters 

(a) We did not audit the financial statements/information of five subsidiaries [i.e. Dorf 

Ketal Chemicals Pte. Ltd., Dorf Ketal Chemicals (Shanghai) Ltd., Dorf Ketal 

Chemicals FZE, Dorf Ketal Chemicals (Malaysia) SDN. BHD. And Dorf Ketal 

Speciality Chemicals SDN. BHD.], whose financial statements/information reflect 

total assets of Rs. 5,56,19,30,330/- and total liabilities of Rs. 1,88,56,38,224/- as at 

March 31, 2022 and total revenue of Rs. 5,16,56,97,040/- for the year ended on that 

date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which also include their 

step down jointly controlled companies. These financial statements/ information have 

been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 

Management, and our opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it 

relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and 

their step down jointly controlled companies, is based solely on the reports of the other 

auditors. 
 

(b) We did not audit the financial statements/information of three subsidiaries [i.e. Dorf 

Ketal B.V., Dorf Ketal Brasil Ltda. and Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC], whose financial 

statements/information reflect total assets of Rs. 7,31,30,51,735/- and total liabilities 

of Rs. 4,56,07,02,301/- as at March 31, 2022 and total revenue of Rs. 

14,24,75,78,271/- for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated 

Financial Statements, which also include their step down jointly controlled companies. 

This financial statements/information have not been audited by us. This financial 

statements/information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the 

Management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it 

relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and  
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jointly controlled companies and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 

of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and jointly controlled 

companies, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements/information.  
 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on other legal and 

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 

respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the 

financial statements/ financial information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on 

separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary 

companies, associate companies and joint ventures, incorporated in India, as noted in 

the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order. 
 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements. 
 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of 

aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 
 

                      (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

                     (including Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the  

                     Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the relevant books of accounts maintained by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries 

included in the Group and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India including 

relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 

        (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

        (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and jointly 

controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group Companies  
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and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India are disqualified as on March 31, 

2022 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

   (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and jointly 

controlled companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 

   (i) The pending litigations of the Company would not have any adverse impact on the 

Financial Position of the Company; 
 

 (ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts; 
 

(iii) The Company is not required to transfer any funds to investor education and 

protection fund. 
 

(iv) a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which 

are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited 

under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries 

respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced 

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in 

any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of 

such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are 

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act 

have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best 

of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any 

person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries, 

associate and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose financial 

statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s 

notice that has caused us or other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-

clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 
 

(v) The Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India have not 

declared any dividend during the year. 

 

                 Annexure -1  

 

 To the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Pvt Ltd. 
 

(Referred to in paragraph 1, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our Report of even date) 
 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of 

our knowledge and belief, we state that: 
 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies 

(Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated 

financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Holding Company. 
 

 

For and on behalf of  
NGPC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s registration number: 147454W 
 
 
 
 
 
PUSHPA U CHANDWANI 
Partner  
M No: 101536 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20-09-2022 
UDIN: 22101536ATXPVN4911 
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited. 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DORF-KETAL 
CHEMICALS INDIA PVT LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) and its 
subsidiaries, its associates and jointly controlled entities, (collectively referred to as 'the 
Group') as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 

The Group's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding  
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
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Opinion  
 
In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
For and on behalf of  
NGPC & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s registration number: 147454W 
 
 
 
PUSHPA U CHANDWANI 
Partner  
M No: 101536 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20-09-2022 
UDIN: 22101536ATXPVN4911 

 
 



Dorf Ketal Chemicals (I) Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2022

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Note

I.  ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 3,376   3,560   
(b) Right to use asset 2 456  475  
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 750  292  
(c) Goodwill 4 513  513  
(d) Other Intangible assets 4 360  497  
(e) Financial Assets

 (i) Investments in Subsidiaries , Associates and
Joint Venture 5

28  1  
 (ii) Other Investments 6 0  0  
(iii) Loans 7 122  78  
(iv) Others 8 48  41  

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 23 309  441  
(g) Income Tax Assets (net) 9 147  155  
(h) Other non-current Assets 10 148  155  

Total Non Current Assets   6,256   6,209 

(2) Current assets
 (a) Inventories 11 6,134   4,473   
 (b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 12 2,154   292  
(ii) Trade receivables 13 6,465   4,231   
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,863   2,542   
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents 14.1
482  332  

(v) Loans 15 189  173  
(vi) Others 16 127  37  

 (c)Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 (73)   (10)   
 (d) Other current assets 18 674  498  

Total Current Assets   18,015    12,568 

TOTAL ASSETS   24,271    18,777 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

 (a) Equity Share capital 19 2,468   1,763   
 (b) Other Equity 20 12,505  10,603  

Total Equity   14,973    12,366 

Non controlling interest 21 235  203   

Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 779  549  

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) -   -   
(c) Other non-current liabilities 24 64  78  

Total Non Current Liabilities   843    627 

(2) Current liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities

  (i)  Borrowings 25 4,043   2,549   
        (ii) Trade payables 26 -   

 Total outstanding dues of Small enterprises & Micro Enterprises 8  16  

2,235   1,575   
 (iii) Others 27 -   219  

(b) Other Current Liabilities 28 991  484  
(c) Provisions 29 943  738  

Total Current Liabilities   8,220   5,582 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   24,271    18,777 
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million
As per our report of even date

For  M/s NGPC &  CO.     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Partner        Sudhir Menon    Subodh Menon   Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Mumbai    Chairman and Managing Director    Director   Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date:  20/09/2022      DIN: 02487658   DIN:00972842
Mem No: 101536      Date: 20/09/2022
UDIN:22101536ATXPVN4911 

Figures in ₹
As at 31st March, 2021

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

Figures in ₹
As at 31st March, 2022



Dorf Ketal Chemicals (I) Private Limited
Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Note
Figures in ₹

2021-22
Figures in ₹

2020-21

I Revenue from operations (net) 30 26,780 19,749 
II Other income 31 475 135 
III Total Income (I+II) 27,255 19,884 
IV EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 32 14,781 10,579 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and stock-in-trade [(Increase)/Decrease] 33 105 (203) 
Employee benefits expense 34 3,793 3,128 
Finance costs 35 223 157 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 686 681 
Other expenses 37 4,127 3,146 
Total Expenses (IV) 23,715 17,488 

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,540 2,395 
Exceptional Items 37.1 201 138 

VI Profit/(loss) before tax 3,339 2,258 
VII Tax Expenses :

Current Tax 38 801 407 
Deferred Tax 38 (56) 7 
MAT Credit Entitlement for the year 38 147 (4) 
MAT Entitlement for Earlier Years 38 - - 
Other taxes 38 0 1 

VIII Profit/(loss) for the year (V - VI) 2,447 1,847 
IX Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

 - Remeaurement of defined benefit plans Liability/(Asset) 7 (7) 
 - Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

statement of profit or loss (3) 3 
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Statement of profit or loss

- 
 - Effective Portion of (Gains)/losses on hedging instruments in

cash flow hedges (81) (87) 
- Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to

statement of profit or loss 28 31 
X Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII) 2,494 1,908 
XI Net Profit Attributable To:

a) Owners of the Company 2,330 1,777 
b) Non Controlling Interest 117 69 

XII Other Comprehensive Income Attributable To
a) Owners of the Company 48 61 
b) Non Controlling Interest - - 

XIII Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
a) Owners of the Company 2,378 1,839 
b) Non Controlling Interest 117 69 

XIV Basic and Diluted (in Rupees) ₹ 101.66 ₹ 100.84

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 2 to 55
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

As per our report of even date

For  M/s NGPC &  CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Partner Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon              Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Mumbai Chairman and Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date:  20/09/2022 DIN: 02487658 DIN:00972842
Mem No:101536 Date: 20/09/2022
UDIN:22101536ATXPVN4911 



Dorf Kczal Chemicals (I) Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow For the Year 31st March 2022

(Rs. in Million)

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Ncz profit before tax 3,540 2,395 

Adjustments for :
Depreciation 686 681 
Amortisation Expenses of Leasehold Land 3 3 
Effect of Exchange Rate Change/ Unrealise Exchange Loss - - 
Interest & Finance Charges 223 157 
Adjustments in Reserves (824) (128) 
Net gain on fair valuation of Investments through profit and loss - - 
 Net gain on Fair valuation of Derivatives through profit and loss (15) (12) 
Acturial Gains/(Loss) remeasured to OCI (5) 5 
Expected Credit Loss on Trade Recievable 16 81 
Non controlling interest (117) (69) 
Interest & Dividend Income (9) (42) (16) 702 
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,498 3,098 
Adjustments for:
Trade Receivables (2,250) 278 
Inventories (1,661) 236 
Loans (60) 25 
Other financial assets (97) (35) 
 Other Current asset (113) 5 
Other Non Current Assets 13 (16) 
Other Non Current Liabilities (13) 41 
Trade and other payables 652 229 
Other Current Liabilities 507 (132) 
Other Financial Liability & Provisions (0) (3,023) (153) 478 
Cash generated from Operations 475 3,575 

Other Comprehensive Income 52 57 
Income Tax Paid (745) (415) 
Deferred Revenue Exp
Deferred Tax Adjustments 132 2 
NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (85) 3,219 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (803) (522) 
Purchase of Fixed/ Term Deposits and Margin Mondf held with Banks - - 
Purchase of Investments in Mutual Fund and Equity (1,862) (292) 
Purchase of Non- current Investments (27) (0) 
Non current financial asset
Interest Received 9 16 
Dividend Received - - 
NET CASH FLOW FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,683) (798) 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Long term borrowings 230 (111) 
Proceeds from Short Term borrowings 1,494 (1,688) 
Proceeds from Equity 705 
Movement in Non controlling interest 32 34 
Interest & Finance Charges (223) (157) 
Dividend Paid
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,239 (1,922) 

D. NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (A) + (B) + ( C) (530) 499 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 2,874 2,376 
Foregin Exchange Translation Impact
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year 2,345 2,874 

(0) (0) 
As per our report of even date

For  M/s NGPC &  CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Partner        Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Mumbai Chairman and Managing Director Director Chief Financial Company Secretary
Date:  20/09/2022 DIN: 02487658 DIN:00972842 Officer
Mem No: 101536 Date: 20/09/2022
UDIN:22101536ATXPVN4911

Figures in ₹
2021-22

Figures in ₹
2020-21



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)

A Equity share capital (Rs. in Million)

Particulars Amount
As at March 31, 2020 1,762.61    

Changes in equity share capital -   
As at March 31, 2021 1,763  17626,10,600   (17626,08,837)    
Changes in equity share capital 705  
As at March 31, 2022 2,468  

B Other Equity (Rs. in Million)

 Total equity 

 Capital 
Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

 Amalgamation 
Reserve* 

 Statutory 
Reserve 

 Foreign 
Exchange 

Capital 
Reserve 

 Foreign Currency 
Translation 

Reserve 

 General 
Reserve 

 Special 
Economic Zone 
Re-investment 

Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings / 

Surplus 

 Other items of 
other 

comprehensiv
e income 

 Effective Portion 
of Gains/(losses) 

on hedging 
instruments 
  in cash flow 

hedges 

Balance as on March 31, 2020    270.95    1,155.55    20.40    0.25    3.05    141.53    (39.12)    108.92    7,173    (23.07)   (52.43)   8,759 

Add: Profit for the year/Changes 
during the year   (45)    (0)    (18)   13   1,777    5    57    1,789 
Adjustment in reserves    55   55 
Balance as on March 31, 2021    226    1,156    20    0   3    124  (26)  109    9,006    (18)   4    10,603 

Add: Profit for the year/Changes 
during the year    44    0   35   87   237   2,330   (5)    52    2,780 
Adjustment in reserves    (878)   (878)
Balance as on March 31, 2022    269    1,156    20    0   3    159    60    109    237    10,458    (23)   57    12,505 

* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

As per our report of even date
For  M/s NGPC &  CO.         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Partner        Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Mumbai     Chairman and Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date:  20/09/2022    DIN: 02487658 DIN:00972842
Mem No: 101536     Date: 20/09/2022
UDIN:22101536ATXPVN4911

 Other Comprehensive Income  Reserves and Surplus 
Particulars  Other equity 



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policy

1.1 Basis for preparation

The percentage of ownership interest of the Corporation in the Subsidiary Companies, JVCs and Associates as on 31st March 2022 are as under:

Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage of 
Ownership Interest 

as at 31st March, 
2022

Percentage of 
Ownership Interest 

as at 31st March, 
2021

Percentage of 
Ownership Interest 

as at 31st March, 
2020

USA 100 100 100

Brasil 80 80 80

Netherlands 100 100 100

UAE 100 100 100

Singapore 100 100 100

Malaysia 100 100 100

Malaysia 49 0 0

China 100 100 100

The financial statements of all subsidiaries, considered in the consolidated accounts, are drawn up to 31st March 2022

1.2 Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to Dorf Ketal Chemicals India  Limited (DKCIPL or Parent Company or Corporation), its Subsidiary 
Companies and interest in Joint Venture and Associates. The Corporation and its Subsidiaries are together referred to as “Group” for the year ended 
31st March 2022.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; and the other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules 
thereunder. 
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, Leases, effective April 1, 2019, on a modified retrospective basis, applying the standard to all leases on balance 
sheet. The adoption of Ind AS 116 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on balance sheet. The 
standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to 
make lease payments (‘lease liability’) and an asset representing right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (‘right-of-use asset’). An optional 
exemption exists for short-term and low value leases. Refer note no (r) below for accounting policies and note no. 2  for related disclosures.
The functional currency of the Corporation and its Indian Subsidiaries is Indian Rupees (`). The presentation currency of the group is Indian Rupees (`).  

(a) The subsidiaries (which along with Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Pvt. Ltd., the parent, constitute the Group) considered in the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements are:

Name

Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC       
(a 100% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Private Ltd)

Dorf Ketal Brasil Ltda      
(a 80% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Private Ltd)
Dorf Ketal B.V.      
(a 100% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Private Ltd)
Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE      
(a 100% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Private Ltd)
Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd      
(a 100% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Private Ltd)
Dorf Ketal Chemicals SDN BHD       
(a 100% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd)

Dorf Ketal Chemicals Shanghai Ltd      
(a 100% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd)

a)    The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, equity, 
incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intragroup transactions.

b)    Profit or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as Inventory and Property, Plant and Equipment, are eliminated in full.

c)     In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates 
prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognized in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR).

Dorf Ketal Speciality Chemicals SDN BHD       
(a 49% subsidiary of Dorf Ketal Chemicals SDN BHD)

d)    The audited/unaudited financial statements of foreign subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principle of its Country of Incorporation of Ind AS.

e)     The differences in accounting policies of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates are not material and the financials of the
subsidiaries have been adjusted for transactions from 1st January, 2022 to 31 March, 2022 in respect of subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates having financial year
ended 31st December, 2021.

f)      The Consolidate Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transaction and other events in similar circumstances.

g)     The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) against parents’ portion of equity in each subsidiary.

h)    The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as on the date of disposal is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss being the profit and loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.

i)      Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures has been accounted under the Equity Method as per Ind AS 28 – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
Investments in joint operations are accounted using the Proportionate Consolidation Method as per Ind AS 111 – Joint Arrangements.

j)      The Group accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates and joint ventures, after eliminating unrealised profit and losses resulting 
from transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures.



1.3 Use of Judgement and Estimates

(i) Assessment of Functional Currency;
(ii) Financial Instruments;
(iii) Estimates of Useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets;
(iv) Valuation of Inventories;
(v) Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations & Actuarial Assumptions;
(vi) Provisions;
(vii) Contingencies and;
(viii) Evaluation of Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets;
(ix) Impairment of Trade Receivables

1.4 Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment

(b) Depreciation

(c) Intangible Asset

(d) Research & Development Expenditure

(e) Inventories

(f) Business combinations - common control transactions

 Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the company are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows; 
• The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

• The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning
of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the business combination had
occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that date.

•The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general reserve.

• No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

• The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee.

• The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves.

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and Net Realisable Value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventory comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other cost including manufacturing overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bring them to their respective present
location and condition.
Cost of raw materials, chemicals, stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on weighted average basis.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM) & for Filtra Unit Written
Down Value Method(WDV)  . Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Upfront Premium paid on Leasehold Land and classified as Finance Lease are recorded as PPE and amortised over the lease term during the year.

Intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure on internally generated
intangibles, excluding development costs, are not capitalised and is reflected in Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred. Development costs are capitalised if, and only if, technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future
economic benefits are probable, the group has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the asset and the costs can be measured reliably.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Consolidated
Profit and Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase
price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day
repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the period during which
such expenses are incurred.

The preparation of the group's Consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and the acgrouping disclosures along with contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. The group continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information. 
In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the Consolidated financial statements are as below:

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, such as right of way which is perpetual and absolute in nature, are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually. The useful lives are reviewed at each period to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The impairment losses on intangible
assets with indefinite life is recognised in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

Software's are being amortised over a period of 5 years on straight line basis.

Research & Development Expenditure pertaining to research is charged to Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss. Development costs of products are
charged to Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss unless a product's technological and commercial feasibility has been established, in such cases
expenditure is capitalised.

k)    Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of the Group in order to
arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

l)      Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.



(g) Fair Value measurement

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(h) Impairment of Non Financial Assets

(i) Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those measured at amortised cost.

(ii) Measurement
Initial Recognition

Subsequent Recognition
Debt instruments

- Amortised Cost

 - Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through Profit & Loss Account (FVTPL)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in Consolidated
Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
Consolidated profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through Consolidated profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
Consolidated profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through Consolidated profit or loss and is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognised in Consolidated profit or loss and presented net in the statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
also reflects its non-performance risk.
The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price – i.e. the fair value of the consideration 

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the group uses a valuation technique that maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in 
pricing a transaction.

The Group regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If the third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing
services, is used to measure fair values, then the Group assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through Consolidated profit or loss), and

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in Consolidated profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in Consolidated profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through Consolidated profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through Consolidated profit or loss are expensed in Consolidated profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:  

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

When quoted price in active market for an instrument is available, the group measures the fair value of the instrument using that price. A market is
regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. 

Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments except for Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint ventures* at fair 

Investments in Equity instruments of Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures are recorded at Cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through Consolidated profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of
Consolidated Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

* Equity instruments in Subsidiaries, Associates & Joint Ventures

Non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Consolidated balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets.

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement
of fair values, for both financial and non financial assets and liabilities.



(iii) Impairment of financial assets

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

(j) Financial Liabilities
(i) Classification
The group classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

- those measured at amortised cost.

(ii) Measurement

Initial Recognition

Subsequent Recognition

- Amortised Cost

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

(k) Derivative financial instruments

Hedge Accounting

(i) Fair Value Hedges

(ii) Cash Value Hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion (if any) is recognised
immediately in Consolidated profit or loss, and is included in the 'Other Income' line item in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulating in equity relating to (effective portion as described above) are
reclassified to Consolidated Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects Consolidated profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised
hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and
losses are transferred from equity (but not as a reclassified adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-
financial liability.

In cases where the designated hedging instruments are options and forward contracts, the group has an option, for each designation, to designate on an
instrument only the changes in intrinsic value of the options and spot element of forward contracts respectively as hedges. In such cases, the time value of
the options is accounted based on the type of hedged item which those options hedge.

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through Consolidated Profit and Loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

- Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Consolidated profit or loss (FVTPL)

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
amortization done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

The group designates certain hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net
investment in foreign operations. Hedges of Foreign exchange fluctuation risk are accounted as Cash flow Hedges.

Changes in Fair Value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedge are recognised in Consolidated Profit & Loss immediately,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to hedged risk. The changes in the fair value of designated
portion of hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedge risk are recognised in profit & loss in the line item relating to the
hedged item.

Hedge Accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting.

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial liabilities.

A financial liability is classified as at Fair Value through Consolidated profit or loss (FVTPL) if it is classified as held for-trading or is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement
of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

The group uses derivative financial instruments to manage the price risk and exposure on account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at fair value with the changes being recognised in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

At the inception of hedge relationship, the group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the
group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair values or the cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value through Consolidated profit or loss, and

- The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 40 details how the group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is derecognised if the group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued
to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.



(iii) Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operations

(l) Offsetting financial instruments

(m) Cash and Cash equivalents

(n) Borrowing Cost

(o) Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods & Services

Interest

Dividends

(p) Foreign Currency Transactions
(i) Initial recognition

(ii) Conversion

(iii) Exchange Differences

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated balance sheet include cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original
maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and cash
equivalents include cash at bank, cash, cheque and draft on hand. The group considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date
of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Consolidated
Profit and Loss.

In case of time-period related hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised in other comprehensive income to the
extent it related to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component of equity, i.e. Reserve for time value of options and elements of forward
contracts in hedging relationship. The time value of options at the date of designation of the options in the hedging relationships is amortised on a
systematic and rational basis over the period during which the options' intrinsic value could affect Consolidated profit or loss. This is done as a
reclassification adjustment and affects other comprehensive income. 

In cases where only the spot element of the forward contract is designated in a hedging relationship and the forward element of the forward contract is not
designated, the group makes the choice for each designation whether to recognise the changes in forward element of fair value of the forward contracts in
Consolidated profit or loss or to account for this element similar to the time value of an option (as described above).

In case of transaction related to hedged item in the above cases, the change in time value of the options is recognised in other comprehensive income to the
extent it related to the hedged item and accumulated in a separate component of equity i.e. Reserve for time value of options and forward elements of
forwards contracts in hedging relationship. This separate component is removed and directly included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of asset
or the liability (i.e. not a a reclassification adjustment thus not affecting other comprehensive income) if the hedged item subsequently results in recognition
of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability. In other cases, the amount accumulated is reclassified to Consolidated profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment in the same period in which the hedged expected future cash flows affect Consolidated profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in Consolidated profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in Consolidated profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the
effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in Consolidated profit or loss, and is included in the 'Other Income' line item.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are
classified to Consolidated profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. It also include exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Investment Income earned on the temporary investment of funds of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that are
separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is 
included under the head “other income” in the statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

Dividend is recognised when right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to 
the entity and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which
are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such fair
value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items of group at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous Consolidated financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which
they arise.



(q) Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits/Retirement Benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plans 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Other long-term employee benefits

Termination benefits (if any)

(r) Leases

(s) Income Taxes
(i) Current Tax

(ii) Deferred Tax

(t) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognized in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss as part of employee benefit expense,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements.
Past service costs are recognized immediately in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss. The net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This net interest is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

Re-measurements which comprise of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset)) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)),
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Liability towards other long term employee benefits - leave encashment (Accumulating Leave Absences) or (Privilege Leave) etc., are determined on
actuarial valuation by qualified actuary by using Projected Unit Credit method. The group has also provided long term compensated absences which are
unfunded.

The current service cost of other long terms employee benefits, recognized in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss as part of employee benefit
expense, reflects the increase in the obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements. Past
service costs are recognized immediately in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss. The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the balance of the obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss. Re-measurements are
recognised in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any 
lease incentives received.

  The right-of-use 
assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability.

  The lease liability 
is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using the incremental borrowing rate.

  Short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets

  The Company has 
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value 
assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss, other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided using the Consolidated balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss of the year in
which the related services are rendered.

The group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans such as gratuity, other post employment benefits etc., is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund, MLF are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Consolidated
Profit and Loss as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a refund in future
payments is available

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed at each reporting period end by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of the economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Expenditure on account of Termination benefits are charged to Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss, other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.



(u) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

(i) Provisions

(ii) Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

(v) Non-current assets held for sale

(w) Cash Flows

(x) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current:

(y)

(z) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic COVID-19

(ai) Recent pronouncements
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(iii) Contingent Asset

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the group’s normal operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and other criteria set
out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company’s management has made assessment of likely impact from the COVID-19 pandemic on business and financial risks based on internal and 
external sources. The Company has also considered the possible effects of COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its financial and non-financial assets and
debt covenants using reasonably available information, estimates and judgments and has determined that none of these balances require a material 
adjustment to their carrying values. Further, the management does not see any medium to long term risks in the ability of the Company to meet its 
liabilities as and when they fall due.

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

  Sudhir Menon
  Chairman and Managing

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Consolidated profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Consolidated profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the group, or
present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Consolidated financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of economic
resources is considered remote.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in respect of items which in each case are above the threshold limit.

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, when the realization of income is virtually 
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognized as an asset.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sale of such assets.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the
Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the Company.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable 
from April 1, 2022, as below:

Accounting Standards Applicability
Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework The Company does not expect the amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract The Company does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.



Note 2 :  Property, Plant & Equipment (Rs. in Million)

A : Tangible Assets

 Particulars Right-to-use Assets Freehold Land Building - Office Building - Factory Plant and Machinery Furniture's & Fixtures Office Equipment's Motor Vehicles Computers Others  Total 

Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2020   495   61.92   219.37   1,556.54   2,406.38   173.34   36.88   275.77   189.94   72.68   5,488 

Additions / Deletion   14   (6)   77   342   3   6   41   5   3   484 

Adjustments   6   (6)   0   0   (2)   2   (0)   0   0   -    0 

Exchange Difference on Translation   (5)   (1)   (1)   (25)    (86)   (5)   (0)   (26)   (4)   (3)   (156)

Balance as at March 31, 2021   510   54   212   1,609   2,661   173   43   291   192   72   5,817 

Additions / Deletion   (40)   (40)   61   (63)   1   24   25   98   17   3   85 

Exchange Difference on Translation   7   1   3   9   50   2   1   13   3   3   92 

Balance as at March 31, 2022   476   15   276   1,555   2,712   199   68   402   212   78   5,994 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at March 31, 2020   27.01   -    17.22   192.24   847.35   98.16   14.53   30.26   127.18   52.43   1,406.39 

Additions / Deletion   8   0   60   298   24   9   22   21   7   449 

Exchange Difference on Translation   (1)   0   (6)   (47)   (2)   (0)   (13)   (3)   (2)   (74)

Balance as at March 31, 2021   34   -    18   247   1,098   119   23   40   146   56   1,781 

Additions / Deletion   (16)   -    15   12   117   5   16   167   8   6   331 

Exchange Difference on Translation   2   -    1   3   29   1   1   8   3   3   50 

Balance as at March 31, 2022   20   -    34   262   1,244   126   40   215   157   65   2,162 

Net Carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2022   456   15   242   1,294   1,468   73   28   188   55   13   3,832 

Balance as at March 31, 2021   475   54   195   1,363   1,562   54   19   252   46   16   4,036 

Balance as at March 31, 2020   468   62   202   1,364   1,559   75   22   246   63   20   4,081 

(i) Assets given as security for borrowings

The Company has given PPE  to lenders as security for various borrowing facilities. (refer note 22 and 25)



Note 3: Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Amount

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at March 31, 2020 233.95   

Additions /(Deletions) 65   
Exchange Difference on Translation (8)   

Balance as at March 31, 2021 292   

Additions /(Deletions) 457   

Exchange Difference on Translation 1   

Balance as at March 31, 2022 750   

At March 31 2022 750   

At March 31 2021 292   

At March 31 2020 234   233945502.2 (2339,45,268)   

 3.1 Capital Work-in progress ageing  

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows : (Rs. in Million)

 Less than 1 year 
 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 years 

 Projects in Progress   615   80   53   2   750 
 Total   615   80   53   2   750 

Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2021 is as follows : (Rs. in Million)

 Less than 1 year 
 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 years 

 Projects in Progress   141   142   3   6   292 
 Total   141   142   3   6   292 

 3.2 Capital Work-in progress completion schedule 

Completion Schedule for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2022 is as follows : (Rs. in Million)

 Less than 1 year 
 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 years 

 Projects to be Capitalised   750   -  -    -    750 
 Total   750   -  -    -    750 

Completion Schedule for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2021 is as follows : (Rs. in Million)

 Less than 1 year 
 1 - 2
years 

 2 - 3
years 

 More than 3 years 

 Projects to be Capitalised   292   -  -    -    292 
 Total   292   -  -    -    292 

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 

Particular
 Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of 

 Total 



Note 4: Goodwill and other intangible Assets

(Rs. in Million)

 Particulars Goodwill 
(incl Goodwill on 

Account of Merger & 
Acquisitions)

 Software's  Non-compete 
agreement, Acquired 

contracts 

 Trade Marks  Patents  Customer Contracts  Loan Processing Fees  Others  Total 

Gross Carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2020 513.09   1.98   (13.87)   138.92   263.08   733.82   13.77   153.00   1,803.80   

Additions / Deletions 2   -   -   -   -   (24)   10   (12)   
Exchange Difference on Translation (0)   (3)   (5)   (15)   (43)   (1)   (5)   (72)   
Balance as at March 31, 2021 513   3   17-     134   248   691   11-     158   1,720   

Additions / Deletions 0-     -   -   -   -   -   7-     (7)   
Exchange Difference on Translation 0   3   5   16   45   -   6   75   
Balance as at March 31, 2022 513   3   14-     139   264   736   11-     156   1,787   

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at March 31, 2020 -   1.52   (35.69)   -   166.86   465.52   8.95   15.29   622.45   

Additions / Deletions 0   12   0   34   96   (19)   16   139   
Exchange Difference on Translation (0)   (3)   (0)   (13)   (35)   (0)   (1)   (52)   
Balance as at March 31, 2021 -   1   (27)   0   189   526   (11)   31   709   

Additions / Deletions 0   1   0   34   96   -   14   145   
Exchange Difference on Translation 0   3   0   15   41   -   1   60   
Balance as at March 31, 2022 -   2   (23)   0   238   663   (11)   46   914   

Net Carrying amount As Per Financials
Balance as at March 31, 2022 513   2   9   139   26   73   (0)   110   873   

Balance as at March 31, 2021 513   2   10   134   59   165   (0)   127   1,010   

Balance as at March 31, 2020 513   0   22   139   96   268   5   138   1,181   1181354985 (11813,53,803)   



Dorf Ketal Chemicals (I) Private Limited

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

5 Non-Current Investments

Investment in Associates / Joint Ventures / Others:
Dorf Ketal Speciality Chemicals sdn Bhd* 0   0   1   

(49,000  Equity Shares of MYR 1/- each fully paid up)
Aritar Private Limited 3   

    ( Equity Shares (PY) of   each fully paid up)
Add : Share of Profit/(Loss) (1)  1   
Trentar Private Limited 7   

    (65,00,000 Equity Shares (PY Nil) of  Rs. 1 each fully paid up)
Add : Share of Profit/(Loss)* 0   7   
Biospin PTE ltd 20   20   
(14.30% held)

Investments (A) 28   1  
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof -   -  
Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments -   -  
Aggregate amount of impairment  in the value of investments -   -  

TOTAL 28   1  
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

6 Other non -  current investments (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Particulars
Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
(a) Investments in Equity Instrument (Unquoted), Fully Paid up.

 - Bharat Co- operative Bank Ltd.* 0  0   
 (25 Equity Shares (PY - 25) of ₹ 10 each fully paid up)

 - CETP, MIDC Taloja* 0  0   
 (5  Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up)

(b) Other -   -  

TOTAL* 0   0  
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof -   -   
Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments* 0   0  
Aggregate amount of impairment  in the value of investments -   -   
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

7 Loans - Non current financial asset (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(a)Loans to Related parties:
(i) Secured, Considered Good
(ii) Unsecured, Considered Good -  

Trentar Private Limited 67   -  
Aritar Private Limited 2   -  
Dorf Ketal Chemicals B.V -  -  

69   -   

(b) Others
Loans to Employees 53   78   
Deposits -  -  
Other Loans -  53   -  78  

TOTAL 122   78  

8 Non- Current financial Assets -  Others (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

32  30   

16  11   

TOTAL 48   41  

9 Income tax assets (net) (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Advance income tax (net of provision) 147  155   

147   155  

10 Other Non-Current Assets (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(a) Advances Other than Capital Advances
Indirect Tax balances/recoverables/credits 88   98   
Advances to Staff and Other Advances 12   100  10   

(b) Others
Infrastructure Development Charges- Mundra SEZ 47   50   
Others 1   48  (2)  

TOTAL 148   155  

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

(a) In Term deposits with bank remaining maturity exceeding 12 months

(b) Balance with bank to the extent held as margin money against bank guarantee and
letter of credit

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2022
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(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

As atAs at

Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2022

11 Inventories (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(Valued and Certified by Management)
(At Cost or NRV whichever is lower)
Raw Materials 2,240   1,205   
Materials in Transit 16   3   
Packing Materials , Stores and Consumables 87   76   
Stock in Process -  3   
Finished Goods 3,791   3,186   
Less : Reserve For Obsolescence -  6,134  -  4,473   

TOTAL 6,134  4,473   

(i) The mode of valuation of inventory has been stated in Note 1.4 (e)
(ii) Inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings

12 Current Investments (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Investments in Mutual Funds - Quoted - Cost/Market Value:
Investments 1,534  210   

Investments in Equity - Unquoted - Cost/Market Value:
Investments 620  82   

TOTAL 2,154   292  

13 Trade Receivables (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Unsecured, considered good :
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured; 6,600   4,350   
(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk -  -  
(d) Trade Receivables - credit impaired -  -  
(Less:) Allowance as per Expected Credit Loss Model (134)  6,465  (118)  4,231   

TOTAL 6,465   4,231  

14 Cash and Bank Balances (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(a)Cash on Hand 2  1   

(b) Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
In Current Accounts 15   17   
In Foreign Currency Accounts 1,733   1,973   
Others 80   1,829   22   2,013  
(Balance in Cash Credit Accounts)

33  529   

TOTAL 1,863   2,542  

14.1 Bank balances other then cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

423  307   

58  25   
-  

TOTAL 482   332  

15 Loans - current financial assets (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Balance with Customs, Central Excise etc. -  7   
Security Deposits 55   19   
Recovery Taxes and Contributions* 0   0   
Others 134   189   147   173  

TOTAL 189   173  
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

16 Other Financial Assets

Recoverable from Old Filtra Owners* 0   
Mark to Mark liability as per Bank (Derivative contract) 10   
 Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedge 116   35  
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 1   2  

127   37  
TOTAL 127   37  
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

(a) Term deposits with bank original maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 
months

(b) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money against bank guarantees
and letter of credit having original maturity less than 12 months

(c) Term deposits with bank with original maturity of less than 3 months

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 
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(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

As atAs at

Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2022

17 Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Advance Income Tax (Net of provision for taxation) (73)   (10)  

(73)   (10)   

18 Other Current Assets (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(a) Advances other than capital advances
(i) Advances to related party -  -  
(ii) Advance to staff 11   11  8   8   

(b) Others
(i) Balance with Customs, Central Excise etc. 594   432   
(ii) Prepaid expenses 53   49   
(iii) Prepaid Lease Rentals (Current Portion) 3   3   
(iv) Receivable from Leave Encashment Trust 7   5   
(v) Others 6   663   2   491  
TOTAL 674   498  

19 Share Capital (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

 No. of shares  Amount  No. of shares  Amount 

Authorised:
25,461,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each 25  2,546   25  2,546  
540,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1  5   1  5  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
24,676,548 equity shares (Previous 1,76,26,106 equity shares) of ₹ 
100  each fully paid 2,468  1,763   
Share Application Money -   -  
TOTAL -   2,468   -   1,763  

19.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Particulars
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 18  18   
Add : Bonus Shares issued during the year* 7  -  
Equity Shares at the end of the year 25   18  

19.2 Rights of Shareholders
The Company has only one class of equity shareholders Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

*The Company allotted 70,50,442 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by 
capitalisation of profits transferred from retained earnings amounting to `70.5 crore in 
the quarter ended 30th Jun, 2021, pursuant to an special resolution passed after taking 
the consent of shareholders

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 



Dorf Ketal Chemicals (I) Private Limited

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

As atAs at

Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2022

20 Other Equity (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Capital Reserve 269  226   

Securities Premium
Opening balance 1,156   1,156   
Add: Received during the Year -  -  

1,156   1,156  

Capital Redemption Reserve 20  20   

Amalgamation Reserve* 0  0   

Statutory Reserve 3  3   

Foreign Exchange Capital Reserve 159  124   

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 60  (26)  

General Reserve
Opening balance 109   109   
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account -  -  

109   109  

Retained Earnings / Surplus
Opening balance 9,110   7,195   
Less: Transfer to Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve (237)  -  
Less: Utilised for issue of Bonus Share (705)  -  
Add: Adjustment result in Brasil due to Argentina and Colombia (6)  9   
Add: Previous years (Profit/(Loss) -  25   
Add: Other Equity distribution (34)  
Add: Prior period Adjustments -  (1)  
Add: Profit for the year(Excluding Non-Controlling Interest) 2,330   (0)  1,777   (0)   

10,458   9,006  

 Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedge
Opening balance 4   (52)  
Add/(Less): Changes in Fair Value during the year 52   (4)  
Add/(Less): Re-classified to Profit & Loss A/c during the year -  57   52   4  

(ii) Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset)
Opening balance (18)  (23)  
Add/(Less): Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) (5)  (23)   5   (18)   

Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve
Opening balance
Add/(Less): Transfer During Year 237  

TOTAL 12,505   10,603  
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

21 Non Controlling Interest 235  203   

TOTAL 235   203  

22 Long Term Borrowings (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

From Banks 
Vehicle Loans** 16  25   
(Secured against respective vehicles)
Term Loans* 696  477   
Loan from Bank - Brazil### 67  47   

779   549  
Unsecured Loans
From Others
Loan from Group Companies -   -  
Loan from Others -   -  

-   -   
TOTAL 779   549  

` `

23 Deferred Tax Asset  / ( Liability ) (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Opening Balance 427  468   
Add : Deferred Tax Liability created during the year 26  9   
Deferred Tax impact on IndAS Adjustments (net) (25)   (34)  
Other Deferred TaxAdjustments 29  (6)  
Add: Mat Credit Entitlement (147)   4   

TOTAL 309   441  

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

* Term loan -  Rs. 386,689,740.6 (PY 2021 ₹ 194,960,000) which is repayable within 12 months has been grouped under Short Term Borrowings
** Vehicle loan Rs.  9,187,452  (PY 2021 ₹ 14,856,850) which is repayable within 12 months has been grouped under Short Term Borrowings
* Term loan - ECB Loan of USD 10 million  from Citibank is secured by first pari passu charge on Movable and Immovable fixed assets , both present and future of Mundra plant, Dahej Plant, 
Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant. ECB loan of USD 10 Million is repayable in 15 quarterly instalments starting from December 2019. 
* Term loan  of INR 22.33 Crore from J P Morgan is repayable in 10 quarterly instalments starting from  Dec 2021.Term Loan of INR 22.33 Crore is secured by first  charge on all fixed assets of
Mundra plant, Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant. 

* Term loan  of INR 28.37 Crore (Sanctioned 50 Crore) from HDFC is repayable in 14 quarterly instalments starting from  Sept 2023.Term Loan of INR 50 Crore sanctioned (Drawdown 28.37) is
secured by first  charge on all fixed assets of Mundra plant, Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant. 

* Working Capital Term loan of  INR 37 Crore  from HSBC bank is secured by second charge on Movable Fixed Asset at Mundra plant, Dahej Plant, Filtra Plant and Dadra Plant.  and second
charge on Stock and Receivables. Working Capital Term Loan is repayable in 48 Monthly instalments starting from March 2022. 

### BRL 4,672,557 is secured against Industrial Equipment, Vehicle fleet of Dorf Ketal Brasil and personally guaranted by Mr. Sergio Moretti 
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(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

As atAs at

Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2022

24 Other non-current liabilities (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Lease Liability 63  69   
Others 2  8   

TOTAL 64   78  

25 Short Term Borrowings (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Secured
(i) Loans From Bank (Repayable on demand)

Foreign Currency  Demand Loans # -  968   
Working Capital Demand Loans # 2,156   60   
Loan From Bank- Brazil ## 331   259   
Line of Credit from Banks ### 1,159   1,262   

3,647  2,549   
Current Maturities of long term debt 387   
Current maturities of finance lease obligations 9   

396   
TOTAL 4,043   2,549  

#
##

###

###

###

###

###

###

26 Trade Payables (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

8  16   

2,235  1,575   

(a)  Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 50)
(b)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 
TOTAL 2,244   1,591  

27 Other Current Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Current Maturities of long term debt -   195   
Current Maturities of Finance lease -   15   
Mark to Mark liability as per Bank -   10   

TOTAL -   219  

28 Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(a) Employee Benefit Expenses Liability 7   
(b) Other Payables:
- Statutory Dues 491  309   
- Liabilities for Expense 350  79   
- Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedge -   -  
- Others 149  88   

TOTAL 991   484  

29 Short-term provisions (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Provision for Employee Benefits 852  658   
Other Provisions 91  80   

TOTAL 943   738  

30 Revenue From Operations (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Net Sales 26,780  19,749   

TOTAL 26,780   19,749  

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

 As at
31st March, 2021 

2020-21

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

2021-22

 As at
31st March, 2022 

 As at
31st March, 2022 

Working Capital loans from Banks are secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets of the Mundra, Dahej, Filtra & Dadra Plant.
Secured against Industrial Equipment, Vehicle fleet, Laboratory Equipment and R & D Building of Dorf Ketal Brasil and personally guaranted by Mr. Sergio Moretti 
The Line of Credit of Dorf Ketal B.V from CITI Bank,INR 45,05,77,000 (current outstanding INR 21,89,72,000)  is secured by Company assets and a standby letter of credit  of Parent Company.

 The Line of Credit of Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC from CITI Bank INR 75,79,25,000 (current outstanding INR 15,15,85,000) is secured by Company assets and a standby letter of credit  of Parent 
Company.

 The Line of Credit of Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC from EXIM bank,INR 75,79,25,000 (current outstanding 37,89,59,847 ) is secured by Company assets  and corporate guarantee of Parent 
Company.

 The Line of Credit of Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE from CITI bank,INR 30,31,70,000 (current outstanding INR -1,57,89,245) is secured by Company assets and a standby letter of credit  of Parent 
Company.

 The Line of Credit of Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE from HSBC bank,INR 22,73,77,500 (current outstanding INR 5,17,15,572) is secured by Company assets and a standby letter of credit  of Parent 
Company.

 The Line of Credit of Dorf Ketal Chemicals Brazil LTDA from JPMC bank,INR 47,37,03,125 (current outstanding INR 37,38,38,400) is secured by Company assets and a standby letter of credit  
of Parent Company.

 As at
31st March, 2022 
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(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

As atAs at
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31 Other Income (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

(a) Interest
Interest on Fixed Deposits 8   16   
Interest on Loan 1   0   

9   16  
(b) Dividend
From Long Term Investments -  -  

-   -   
(c) Other non-operating Income
Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund 25   (0)  
Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net) 5   6   
Rental Income* 0   0   
Exchange Difference (net) -  -  
Miscellaneous Income 319   112   
Exchange differences with reference to hedge 102   -  
Patent License -  
Mark to Market Impact on Derivative 15   -  

465   119  

TOTAL 475   135  
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

32 Cost of Materials Consumed (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Net Cost of Material 14,781  10,579   

TOTAL 14,781   10,579  

33 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Stock-in-Process and Stock-in-trade

Inventories (At Close)
Finished goods and Work-in-Process 1,096  1,202   

Inventories (At Commencement)
Finished goods and Work-in-Process 1,202  999   

TOTAL 105   (203)   

34 Employee Benefits Expense (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Salaries and Wages 3,435  2,907   
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 255  141   
Staff Welfare Expenses 102  80   

TOTAL 3,793   3,128  

35 Finance Costs (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Interest Expenses
On Working Capital Loans 109   81   
On Foreign Currency Loans - Packing Credit 45   31   
On Foreign Currency Loans - Buyers Credit* 0   2   

On Foreign Currency Loans - Secured Long Term 2   13   
On Unsecured Loans 5   0   
On Other Loans 1   7   

163   133  
Other Borrowing Costs
Amortization of borrowings* -   0   
Bank Charges 19  20   
Other Interest 24  33   
Mark to Market Impact on Derivative -   (12)  
 Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost -   (43)  
Finance Cost 4  7   
Hedge Cost On Interest- Foreign Currency Loans 13  19   
Net (Gain)/Loss from Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations -   -  

TOTAL 223   157  
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

36 Depreciation and amortisation expense (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Depreciation and Amortisation 686  681   

TOTAL 686   681  

2020-21

2020-21

2020-21

2020-21

2020-21

2020-21

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22



Dorf Ketal Chemicals (I) Private Limited

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

 As at As at

Notes on Consolidated Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2022

37 Other expenses (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Manufacturing Expenses
Stores and Consumables 95 81 
Power, Fuel and Water Charges 375 263 
Labour Cost 225 197 
Repairs-

Building 7 8 
Plant and Machinery 119 75 
Others 12 6 

Testing Charges 48 23 
Rent 59 50 
Property Tax - - 
Material Handling Chgs - - 
Health, Safety & Environment related Expenses 37 20 
Miscellaneous Manufacturing Expenses 267 215 

1,245 939 

Administrative Expenses
Payments to Auditors 9 8 
Electricity Expenses 14 13 
Telephone Expenses 28 22 
Conveyance and Travelling 160 102 
Printing and Stationary 7 5 
Training and Recruitment Charges 14 6 
Legal and Professional Charges 247 164 
Insurance 100 84 
Rent, Rates and Taxes 77 66 
Vehicle Exp 49 33 
Meeting and Conference chgs 1 1 
Computers and Networking Charges 41 39 
Office Expenses 65 30 
Exchange Difference (net) 83 114 
Corporate Social Responsibility 16 12 
Political Contribution - - 
Other Administrative expenses 80 93 

990 790 

Selling and Distribution Expenses
Advertising and Publicity 2 0 
Business Promotion Expenses 39 20 
Royalty 2 - 
Commission 111 62 
Clearing, Forwarding & Transportation 1,379 784 
Bad Debts 1 3 
Allowance as per ECL Model 16 79 
Balances Written Off - - 
Others 223 359 

1,771 1,306 
Research  & Development (R&D)  Expenses 118 109 
Impairment of non-current investment in Subsidiary - - 
Share of Loss of Equity accounted Associates 2 0 
Aritar Private Limited (Share of Loss of Equity accounted Associates) 1 - 
Trentar Private Limited (Share of Loss of Equity accounted Associates)* (0) - 

TOTAL 4,127 3,146 
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

37.1 Exceptional Items (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Impairment Loss of non-current investment - 95 
Profit on Sale of Non- Current Investment - (1) 
Extra Ordinary expenses 39 44 138 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset (Taloja) 162 201 

37.2 R & D Expenses (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Costs of Lab Materials Consumed 39 36 
Lab Consumables 12 13 
Payments & Benefits to Employees 50 46 
Travelling & Conveyance 1 0 
Other Overheads Expenses 16 13 
TOTAL 118 109 

38 Taxation (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

Current Tax 801 407 
Deferred Tax (56) 7 
MAT Entitlement for Current Year 147 (4) 
Other Taxes* 0 1 

TOTAL 892 411 
* represents value less than Rs.0.5 Million

As per our report of even date

For   M/s NGPC &  CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Partner Sudhir Menon Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
Mumbai Chairman and Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: 20/09/2022 DIN: 02487658 DIN:00972842
Mem No: 101536 Date: 20/09/2022
UDIN:22101536ATXPVN4911 

2020-21

2020-21

2020-21

2020-21

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All Amounts in INR)

39 Financial Instruments

A. Capital Management

Its guiding principles
i) Maintenance of financial strength to ensure the highest ratings;
ii) Ensure financial flexibility and diversify sources at financing;
iii) Manage Group exposure in forex to mitigate risks to earnings;
iv)

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period are as under:
(Rs. In Million)

Particulars
 As at

March 31, 2022 
 As at

March 31, 2021 
 As at

March 31, 2020 

Total borrowings 4,822  3,098  4,896  
Less: Cash and bank balances  2,345  2,874  2,376 

Net debts  2,477  223  2,520 

Total equity  14,973  12,366  10,522 
Capital gearing ratio (%) 16.54% 1.80% 23.95%

B. Valuation

i)
ii)

iii) All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date.
iv) The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is as:

- 

The fair value of Forward Foreign Exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance 
sheet date.

Carrying amount of "Current Financial Instruments" is considered as its Fair Value as it approximates their fair
value largely due to short term maturities of these financial instruments

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to ensure that the Group is able to continue as going
concern to sustain future development of the business. The Group monitors the return on capital as well as the level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Leverage optimally in order to maximum shareholders returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of the 
balance sheet.

The policy is also adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial and 

Amounts in Rs.

All financial instruments are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value as described below:
The fair value of investment in quoted Equity shares and Mutual funds is measured at quoted price or NAV



C. Fair value measurement hierarchy:
Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(a) Financial Assets

(i) At Amortised Cost
- Loan (Current and Non current) 311   251  
- Term Deposit and Margin Money (Non
current portion) 48   41  

- Trade receivables 6,465  4,231  
- Cash and cash equivalents 1,863  2,542  
- Bank balances other then cash and cash
equivalents 482   332  
- Others Financial Assets(Current ) 127   37  

(ii) At FVOCI

(iii) At FVTPL
- Investments in Equity Instruments
(Unquoted) 0   0   0  0  
- Investments in MUTUAL Funds
(Quoted) 2,154  2,154   292  292  

- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contracts designated as Fair Value Hedge 10   10   

- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contracts designated as Cash Flow Hedge -  -   

(b) Financial Liabilities
(i) At Amortised Cost

- Borrowings (Current and Non current) 4,822  3,098  
- Trade Payables 2,244  1,591  
- Other Financial Liabilities -  210  

(ii) At FVTPL

- Mark to Mark Value of Derivative
contract designated as Cash Flow Hedge -  -   -   -   

-  MTM Value of Derivatives Contracts - 
Designated as Fair Value Hedges -   10  10  

 Carrying Amount 
 Level of input used in 
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 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2022 

 Carrying Amount 
 Level of input used in 
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022:

Particulars Unquoted Equity

As at April 1, 2021 0  
Gains/losses recognised in other comprehensive income -   
As at March 31, 2022 0  

Carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, margin money and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other
current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their fair value largely due to short term maturities of these instruments

The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:
i)  Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
ii) Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. In the case of the mutual funds are valued using the
closing NAV. In the case of Derivative contracts, the Company has valued the same using the forward exchange rate as at the reporting date.

iii) Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3. The
Company owns unlisted equity shares in companies, which are non-profit companies providing facilities for treating effluents generated during its manufacturing process. In the absence of any observable
market data in relation to the said companies, the same have been categorised as Level 3. Considering the objective of investment and materiality, its fair value have been considered same as cost as at the
reporting date.

Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but fair value disclosures are required)
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40 Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
A) Credit risk;
B) Liquidity risk;
C) Market risk; and

A. Credit risk

(i) Trade and other receivables

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;
ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty;
iii)
iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty;
v)

Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.
Ageing for trade receivables – current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Million)

Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

Inter company Debtors   2,614   49   9   -    43   2,716 
Other Debtors   6,121   344   119   -    17   6,600 
Less : Allowances for 
ECL

  (134)

Less : Elimination   (2,716)
 Total   6,465 

Ageing for trade receivables – current outstanding as at March 31, 2021 (Rs. In Million)

Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

Inter company Debtors   2,503   17   5   -    52   2,578 
Other Debtors   3,807   247   266   12   17   4,350 
Less : Allowances for 
ECL

  (118)

Less : Elimination   (2,578)
 Total   4,231 

(ii) Investment in debt securities

Investment in debt securities are in mutual funds.

(iii) Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted/ Unquoted)

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Investment in Equity Instruments are Unquoted Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures as well as Unquoted Equity of Bharat Co-operative Bank Ltd.

Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have
been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of
profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based
on actual credit loss experience and past trends.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

Particulars
Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

Particulars
Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations;

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations. 

The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also enters into
derivative transactions.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers, loans investment in debt securities and other financial assets. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful trade receivables and
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments covered below is restricted to their respective carrying amount.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer and including the default risk of the industry,
also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information such as:
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(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

(v) Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

(vi) Other Financial Assets

These assets represents balances receivables in nature of Insurance Claim , Interest accrued on Term/ Fixed Deposits
The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

(vii) Derivatives

The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties

The Company held Cash and Cash Equivalents of ₹2,345 Million as at March 31, 2022 (₹2,874 Million as at March 31, 2021). The Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of Cash on Hand, Term
Deposits having original maturity less than 3 months and Banks Balances.

The Cash and Cash Equivalents representing term deposits less than original maturity less than 3 months and the Bank Balances are held with banks. The cash and cash equivalents are held with
banks with good credit ratings and financial institution counterparties with good market standing

The Company held Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents of ₹ 530 Million as at March 31, 2022  ( ₹ 373 Million as at March 31, 2021) 
These balances represents term deposits having original maturity more than 3 -12 months; term deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months on the reporting date & Balances with
banks to the extent held as margin money against Bank guarantees and letter of credit for the period having original maturity between 3 - 12 months as well as remaining maturity more than 12
months on the reporting date.
The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with good credit ratings and financial institution counterparties with good market standing 

The derivative contracts are entered into with scheduled banks which have good credit ratings.  Further exposures to counter-parties are closely monitored and kept within the approved limits
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B. Liquidity Risk

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital facilities from various domestic as well as foreign banks.

Exposure to liquidity risk (Rs. In Million)

Upto 1 year > 1 year Upto 1 year > 1 year

779   779  549  549  
4,043   4,043  2,549  2,549  
2,244   2,244  1,591  1,591  

-   -   210  210  

7,066 6,287 779 4,899 4,350 549

0 0 -  

0 0 10 10 -  

-   -   -   10  10  -   

7,066   6,287   779   4,909   4,360   549   
Total Financial Liabilities 
(A) + (B)

(b) MTM Value of Derivatives
Contracts - Designated as Fair
Value Hedges

(B)

(A) Non Derivative Financial
Liabilities

(a) Non-Current Borrowings

As at March 31, 2022
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of Derivative financial liabilities & Non - Derivative Liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and 
undiscounted and include estimated interest payments as and where applicable-

Particulars As at March 31, 2021

(b) Current Borrowings

(d) Others

(A)

(c) Trade Payables

(a) MTM Value of Derivatives
Contracts - Designated as
Cash Flow Hedges

(B) Derivative Financial
Liabilities



(Rs. In Million)

Upto 1 year > 1 year Upto 1 year > 1 year

0   0  0  0  
6,465   6,465  - 4,231 4,231  -   

1,863   1,863  - 2,542 2,542  -   

482   482  -   332  332  -   
189   189  -   173  173  -   
12   12  -   2  2  -   

(g) Long Term Borrowings 122   122  78  78  

48   48  41  41  

9,181   9,011  170  7,400  7,281  119  

116   116  35  35  

116   116  -   35  35  -   

9,297   9,127   170   7,435   7,315   119   

Net Gains (Losses) on fair value changes

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2022
As at March 31, 

2021

Investments classified at FVTPL 1,534  210  

Investments Designated at FVTPL -   -   

Derivatives at FVTPL 10  10-    

-   -   

Reclassification adjustments -   -   

-   -   

Others(to be specified) -   -   

35  10  

(a) Derivatives Instruments

(B)

Total Financial Assets
(A) + (B)

(d) Bank balances other then
cash and cash equivalents
(e) Loans
(f) Others Financial Assets

(i) Others Non Current
Financial Assets

(A)

(B) Derivative Financial
Assets

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flowsCarrying 
Amount

Contractual cash flows

(A) Non Derivative Financial
Assets

(a) Investments
(b) Trade receivables

As at March 31, 2021

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its Non-Derivative financial assets and Derivative Financial Assets. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets
is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

As at March 31, 2022

Other Financial Instruments designated at
FVTPL

Reliased gainon Debt investments
classified as FVOCI

Total Net Gain (Losses) on Fair Value 
Changes

Particulars
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C. Market Risk

(a) Currency Risk

Hedge Accounting

Currency risk-Transactions in foreign currency

Interest Rate Risk

The company doesn't have any interest rate risk w.r.t. Hedge for Transactions in Foreign Currency

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Currency risk, Interest rate risk
and Other price risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

The Company operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the
Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in the United States, Middle East, Singapore, Malaysia and elsewhere, and
purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies may
fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are affected positively/adversely as the rupee
appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from these transactions and
enters into foreign exchange Derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The
Company follows established risk management policies, to hedge forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currency. The Company
has designated certain derivative instruments as cash flow hedges to mitigate the foreign exchange exposure of forecasted highly probable
cash flows.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes 
the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.
Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are measured as described below:
Cash flow hedges:
Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in other comprehensive
income and held in cash flow hedging reserve, net of taxes, a component of equity, to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent
that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and reported within foreign exchange
gains/(losses), net within results from operating activities. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative
gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash flow
hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging
reserve is transferred to the statement of income upon the occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction is
no longer expected to occur, such cumulative balance is immediately recognised in the statement of income.
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Disclosures of Effects of Hedge Accounting

A. Fair Value Hedge
(i) Hedging Instrument

Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV
Assets Liabilities

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
Forward Contracts   9 9-     Other current financial liabilities 
Forward Contracts(Loans) - Other current financial liabilities
Option Contracts - Other current financial liabilities
Interest Rate Swap 3  3   Other current financial liabilities 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -  -  -  -  

(ii) Hedging Item
Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV

Assets Liabilities Asset / (Liability)

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
Long term loans(ECB & FCNR) 303  3-      Borrowings 
Trade Receivables 1,577  9    Trade Receivables 
Trade Payables   Trade Payables 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -  -  -  -  

B. Cash Flow Hedge
(i) Hedging Instrument

Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV
Assets Liabilities Asset / (Liability)

(a) Foreign Currency Risk
Forward Contracts 101.52  102   Other Financial Assets 
Option Contracts 13.99  14   Other Financial Assets 

(b) Other Risk (if any)

(ii) Hedging Item
Type of Hedge & Risk Changes in FV

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Highly Probable Exports 116  116  
 Other Comprehensive Income- 

Other Equities 

(b) Other Risk (if any) -  -  -  

Carrying Amount Line item in Balance Sheet

Carrying Amount  Line item in Balance Sheet 

Carrying Amount Line item in Balance Sheet

Hedging Reserve  Line item in Balance Sheet 
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Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the respective reporting dates -

Particulars
Amount in FC * Amount in INR

(a) Trade Payables

USD 6  440   
EUR 0  12   
CNY 0  1   

(b) Foreign currency loan
Foreign currency loan (Liability)

USD 3  253   

(c) Export Trade Receivables

EUR 7  562   
USD 20  1,488   
CNY 9  106   
KWD 0  27   
MYR 9  171   

Particulars
Amount in FC * Amount in INR

(a) Trade Payables
USD 4  299   
EUR 1  55   

(b) Foreign currency loan
Packing Credit/ Buyer's Credit

EUR
USD

Foreign currency loan (Liability)
USD 6  439   

Foreign currency loan (Asset)
USD
CHF

(c) Export Trade Receivables
EUR 2  194   
USD 11  817   
CNY 6  70   
KWD -  -  
MYR 5  82   

 As at March 31, 2021 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

 As at March 31, 2022 
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41 Employee benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan

A. Change in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 For the year Ended 
March 31, 2022 

 For the year Ended 
March 31, 2021 

1) Opening present value of Defined Benefit obligation 0  75  
2) Current Service Cost 8  8  
3) Past Service Cost -  -  
4) Interest Cost 5  5  
5) Benefits paid (7)  (3)  
6) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation - Change in Financial Assumptions (3)  0  
7) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation - Due to Experience 10  (8)  
8) (0)  -  
9) Closing present value of obligation 0  0  

Particulars

 Demographic Assumptions

The Company makes contributions towards Provident Fund, ESIC & MLW Fund to defined contribution retirement benefit plan
for qualifying employees. The provident fund contributions are made to Government administered Employees Provident Fund.
Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a specified percentage
of the covered employee's salary.
The Company recognised Rs.2,90,96,104/- for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Rs.2,57,78,395/- for the year ended March 31,
2021) for Provident Fund, ESIC & MLW Fund contributions included in Employee Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

The Company makes annual contributions to Gratuity Fund which is administered by the Trustees of the fund, the board of
trustees decide about the further investment of the corpus available to be invested. For any reason if the return on investment is
lesser than the contribution required to be made as per actuarial valuation such deficiency shall be made good by the company.
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit
separately to build up the final obligation

The company also has a benefit plan with respect to Accumulating Leave Absences (Privilege Leave). The obligation for Leave
Encashment is recognised in the same manner as Gratuity. The company has also provided long term compensated absences
which are unfunded.
The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as
at respective dates



B. Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets during the year ended;

For the year Ended
March 31, 2022

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

1) Fair value of plan assets as at Beginning of Period 0  56  
2) Expected return on plan assets (1)  (0)  
3) Contributions made 2  19  
4) Benefits paid (7)  (3)  
5) Interest income 5  4  
6) Actuarial gain / (Loss) on plan assets -  -  
7) Fair value of plan assets as at End of Period (0)  0  

C. Expenses recognised during the period:

For the year Ended
March 31, 2022

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

1) In Income Statement 8  10  
2) In Other Comprehensive Income 7  (7)  
3) Total Expenses recognised during the period 16  2  

D. Net employee benefits expenses recognized in the employee cost

 For the year Ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year Ended
March 31, 2020 

1) Current Service Cost 8  8  
2) Past Service Cost -  -  
3) Interest Cost on benefit obligation 0  1  
4) Total Expenses recognised during the period 8  10  

E.

For the year Ended
March 31, 2022

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

1) Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
2) Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3)  0  
3) Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience variance 10  (8)  
3)  Actuarial changes arising from changes in Change in Demographic Assumptions (0)   -  
4) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense 1  0  
5) Total Expenses recognised during the period 7  (7)  

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



F. Net Assets / (Liability) as at Balance Sheet Date

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1) Closing  Present value of the defined benefit obligation (0)  (0)  
2) Closing Fair value of plan Assets (0)  0  

3) Net Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (0)  (0)  

G. Actual return on plan assets for the year ended:

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

For the year Ended
March 31, 2020

1) Expected return on plan assets (1)  (0)  
2) Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets -  -  

3) Actual return on plan assets (1)  (0)  

H. The major categories of Plan Assets as a percentage of the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows:

 For the year Ended 
March 31, 2021 

 For the year Ended
March 31, 2020 

Insurance Funds 1   1   
Others -  -  

I. Assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment for the Company’s plan are shown below :

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

For the year Ended
March 31, 2020

1) Discount rate Current Year 0   0   

2) Discount rate Previous  Year 0   0   

3) Salary growth rate (per annum) 0   0   
4) Attrition Rate  Service < 5 : 8.6%

Service >= 5 : 2%
 Service < 5 : 8.6%
Service >= 5 : 2%5) Mortality Rate During Employment  Indian Assured  Indian Assured 6) Mortality Rate After Employment N.A N.A

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars



For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

For the year Ended
March 31, 2020

1) No's.  752  783 
2) Per Month Salary For Active Members (Rs.) 23  25  
3) Weighted average duration of DBO 11  11  
4) Future Service (yrs.) 15  15  
5) Projected Benefit Obligation 78  75  
6) Prescribed Contribution for Next Year (12 months) 11  25  

J. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

For the year Ended
March 31, 2020

1) 1st Following Year 9 7
2) 2nd Following Year 2 3
3) 3rd Following Year 4 4
4) 4th Following Year 6 4
5) 5th Following Year 6 6
6) Sum of Years 6 to 10 33 33
7) Sum of Years 11 & above 109 109

K. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Employer

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

For the year Ended
March 31, 2020

1) 1st Following Year -  -  
2) 2nd Following Year -  -  
3) 3rd Following Year -  -  
4) 4th Following Year -  -  
5) 5th Following Year -  -  
6) Sum of Years 6 to 10 -  -  
7) Sum of Years 11 & above -  -  

Sensitivity Analysis
Quantitative Disclosures

For the year Ended
March 31, 2021

For the year Ended
March 31, 2020

1) Projected Benefit Obligation on basis of Current Assumptions  0  0 

2) Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Discounting -7 -6
3) Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Discounting 8 8

0 0
4) Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Salary Increase 7 7
5) Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Salary Increase -6 -6

0 0
6) Delta Effect of +1% change in Rate of Employee Turnover 1 1
7) Delta Effect of -1% change in Rate of Employee Turnover -1 -1

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption and quantitive impact on Defined Benefit Obligation as at March
31, 2019 is as shown below:



Qualitative Disclosures
Para 139 (a) Characteristics of defined benefit plan

Para 139 (b) Risks associated with defined benefit plan
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Para 139 (c) Characteristics of defined benefit plans

 Para 147 (a)
A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by
rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962. 

The Sensitivity Analysis is determined based on reasonable possible changes of respective assumptions occurring at the end of
reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary
plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.
The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk.
Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default
will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory
guidelines.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members.
As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.
Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government
securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of
Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

During the year, the company has changed the benefit scheme in line with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 by increasing
monetary ceiling from 10 lakhs to 20 lakhs. Change in liability (if any) due to this scheme change is recognised as past service
cost.

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on
the duration of asset.
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42 Related party disclosures

(i) Name of Related Party and the nature of Relationship

(a) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Sudhir V. Menon Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Subodh V. Menon Director
Mr. Mahesh Subramaniyam Director
Mrs. Padmaja Menon Director
Mr. Perumangode Ramaswamy Director
Mr. Vijayaraghava Aniparambil Menon Director
Mr. Pramod Menon Director
Mr. Yogesh Ranade Additional Director
Mr. Vijaykumar Malpani Group Finance Controller
Mr. Rajdeep Shahane Company Secretary

(b) Associate Company
Aritar Private Limited
Trentar Private Limited

(c) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence.
Yaap Digital Pvt Ltd
Yaap Digital FZE
FFC Information Solution Pvt Ltd
Brand Planet Consultants India Pvt Ltd
Intnt Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
Oplifi Digital Pvt Ltd
Lajawaab Foods Pvt.Ltd
Fobeoz India Private Limited.
GarudaUAV Soft Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
TM Aerospace Pvt. Ltd.
Trishula Advanced Composites and Electronics Private Limited

(d) Employment benefit plan
Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Employee's Gratuity Fund.
Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Employee's Group Leave Encashment Fund.
Yaap Employees Welfare Trust
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(i) Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Associate
Interest income 1  
Recovery of Expenses 0  0  
Rent Received 0  0  
Investments 7  3  

(b) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Remuneration 1,292 993
Professional Fees 1  1  
Rent Paid 14  9  

(c)Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise
significant influence.

Sale of Fixed Assets 1  -  
Purchase of Fixed Assets 1  -  
Management Sharing Fees received 12  -  
Recovery of Expenses 1.25  1  
Rent Received 0  0.06  
Business Promotion Expense/ Staff Welfare 6  2  
Advertisement Charges 1  2  

(ii) Balance Outstanding of Related Parties

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Associate
Investments 9  3  
Unsecured Loans Given / Repaid (Net) 69  

(b) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise 
significant influence.

  Receivables 4  4  
 Advance to Sundry Creditors 11  10  
 Loans & Advances 4  4  
Creditors 0  - 
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43 Ind AS 115 Disclosure

1. Disaggregate Revenue

2. Reconciliation between revenue with customers and contracted price:
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Revenue as per contracted price 27,215  20,169   
Less: Adjustments
Sales return 435  420  
Discounts/ Rebates
Revenue from contracts with Customers 26,780  19,749  

3. Sales by performance obligations
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Upon Shipment 26,780  19,749  
Upon Delivery -   -  
Total 26,780  19,749  

4. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables from contracts with customers:
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Trade receivables 6,600  4,350  
Allowance as per Expected credit loss model 134  118  
Total 6,465  4,231  

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 180 days.
Particulars Year ended 

31 March 2022
Year ended 

31 March 2021
Contract liability
Advances from Customers

The Contract liability outstanding at the beginning of the year has been recognised as revenue during the year
ended March 31, 2022.



Dorf-Ketal Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All Amounts in INR)

44 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Rs. In Million)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

(I) Contingent liabilities
(a) In respect of Income Tax matters 22   22   
(b) Other Matters :

- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt;
Excise,Service Tax and customs matters
Sales Tax/VAT matters -   -   

- Others -   -   

-In respect of Bank Guarantees 1,036   625   
-In respect of Letter of Credit 504   138   

5   10   

1,566   795   

45 Dividend:
The following dividend were declared and paid by the Subsidiary Companies:

a. Dividend paid to DK PTE by DK Malaysia (Rs. In Million)

INR
2022

21   

13   

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of INR 1,29,71,433/- in respect of the financial year ended 31st March 2022

All the dividends paid or proposed in the current and prior years are single tier dividends with no income tax consequences to shareholder of the company.

b. Dividend paid to DKCIPL by DK PTE

2022 2021 2022 2021
11.66   13.76  47   55   

Final exempt(1-Tier) dividend paid 17.26   70   

c. Dividend paid to DKCIPL by DK Brasil

2022 2021 2022 2021
24.00   6.50   330   91   

  INR   INR
Rate Per Share

Dorf Ketal Brasil
BRL   INR

Total Total

In respect of the financial year ended 31st March 2020

Dorf Ketal Malaysia

In respect of the financial year ended 31st March 2021
Final single tier dividend of RM 1.46 per share, declared on 11th October 2021 and paid on 21st October 2021

Dorf Ketal PTE

Total

Interim exempt(1-Tier) dividend declared

(c) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees; and

-In respect of Material Imported under Advance License against 
which pro-rata Export Obligations is pending.

Final single tier dividend of RM 1.46 per share, declared on 18th Jun 2020 and paid on 15th October 2020

Total
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46 Segment Information:
Business Segment:
The Company has only one identifiable Business Segment i.e. Chemicals.

Geographic Segment:
The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers.

(Rs. In Million)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2022 
 As at 

March 31, 2021 

Africa   460   377 

America   9,241   7,044 

Asia   13,371   9,579 

Europe 3,709   2,749  

Total 26,780   19,749   

47 Leases
A. Leases as Lessee
I. Finance lease
(i) Vehicles (Rs. In Million)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

Not later than one year 9   15   
Later than one year but not later than five years 16   25   
More than five years -   -   

Total 25   40   

The Group has vehicles on non-cancellable finance lease for periods ranging from 12 months to 60 months.

The net future minimum lease payments outstanding as at reporting date under the said lease agreements are as under:

1. The Group has common assets for producing goods for Domestic markets and Overseas Markets. Hence, separate figures for
assets/additions to fixed assets and liabilities cannot be furnished.
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(ii) Land Leases (Rs. In Million)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

(i) Gross Carrying Amount   476   510 
(ii) Accumulated depreciation   20   27 
(iii) Depreciation/Amortisation recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss   (14)   7 
(iv) Balance at the end of year 470   475   

48 Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR):

(a)

(b) CSR Expenditure during the year:
(Rs. In Million)

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Education 5   8   
Arts & Culture 2   1   
Health 1   1   
Skill Development 0   -   
Sports Development 0   0   
Covid-19 8   0   
Total 16   12   

49 Fixed assets includes Research and Development (R&D) assets Gross Block as under:-

Particulars
 Building – Factory  Plant & Machinery 

 Furniture & 
Fixtures 

As on 31st March, 2021 8.82   154.88   8.79   
Additions 1   
As on 31st March, 2022 9   156   9   

(Rs. In Million)

The Group has finance lease arrangements for various Land leases. The carrying amount of these assets are shown below:

CSR  amount required to be spent by the companies is as per section 135 of the companies act 2013 read with schedule VII 
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50 Micro, Small and medium enterprises (Rs. In Million)

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

8   16   
-   -   

-   -   
-   -   

Total Interest accrued and remained unpaid at year end

Ageing for trade payable – current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Million)

Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

Inter company Creditos   2,356.56   356.65   2.28   -  -    2,715.49 
Other Creditos   811.14   1,421.58   11.82   (0.66)   (0.07)   2,243.80 
Less Elimination   (2,715.49)

 Total   2,243.80 
Ageing for trade payable – current outstanding as at March 31, 2021

Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Total

Inter company Creditos   2,082.44   389.57   108.03  - (2.28)   2,577.75 
Other Creditos   383.00   1,180.99   4.59   1.59   21.32   1,591.48 
Less Elimination   (2,577.75)

 Total   1,591.48 

51 Group Information 
1. The Consolidated Financials of the group includes Subsidiaries listed in the below table

Name
Country of 

Incorporation
Percentage of Ownership Interest 

as at 31st March, 2022

Percentage of 
Ownership 

Interest as at 31st 
March, 2021

Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC  USA 100 100
Dorf Ketal Brasil Ltda  Brasil 80 80
Dorf Ketal B.V.  Netherlands 100 100
Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE  UAE 100 100
Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd  Singapore 100 100
Dorf Ketal Chemicals Shanghai Ltd China 100 100
Dorf Ketal Specialty Chemicals Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 49 0
Dorf Ketal Chemicals SDN BHD  Malaysia 100 100

52 Material partly owned subsidiaries

To the extent, the Corporation has received intimation from the “suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under:

Particulars
Amount Due and Payable at the year end

Interest due and payable for Principal already paid

* (i) There were no dues outstanding to MSME as on March 31, 2022  exceeding 45 days and hence Company is not liable to pay any 
interest on the outstanding figures.

- Interest on above Principal

Particulars
Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

Particulars
Outstanding for Following Period from Due Date of Payment

- Principal
- Interest on above Principal
Payment made during the year after the due date
- Principal
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Financial information of the subsidiaries that have material non controlling interest is provided below:

Name of the company 31.3.22 31.3.21
In% In%

Dorf Ketal Specialty Chemicals Sdn. Bhd. 51   -   
Dorf Ketal Brasil LTDA 20   20   

Information regarding non controlling interest
Particulars 31.3.22 31.3.21

INR INR
Accumulated Balances of non-controlling interest 235   203   
Profit & loss allocated to material non-controlling 
interest 117   69   

53
(Rs. In Million)

As % of 
consolidated net 
assets

Amt As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amt

As % of 
consolidated 
other 
comprehensive 
income

Amt As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amt

Parent
1 Dorf Ketal Chemicals India Pvt.Ltd 62.71% 10,811   32.90% 1,007  100% 48   33.93% 1,054   

Subsidiaries
1 Dorf Ketal Chemicals LLC 8.77% 1,512   26.79% 819   0% - 26.38% 819   
2 Dorf Ketal Brasil Ltda 6.78% 1,169   19.09% 584   0% - 18.80% 584   
3 Dorf Ketal B.V. 0.42% 72   2.02% 62   0% - 1.99% 62   
4 Dorf Ketal Chemicals FZE 3.45% 595   1.42% 43   0% - 1.40% 43   
5 Dorf Ketal Chemicals Pte Ltd 13.92% 2,400   14.20% 435   0% - 13.99% 435   
6 Dorf Ketal Chemicals (Malaysia) SDN. BHD 2.78% 479   2.37% 73   0% - 2.33% 73   
7 Dorf Ketal Speciality Chemicals SDN BHD 0.01% 2   0.03% 1   0% - 0.03% 1   
8 Dorf Ketal Chemicals (Shanghai) Ltd 1.16% 200   1.17% 36   0% - 1.15% 36   

Associate
1 Aritar Private Limited 0.00% -   0.00% -   0% - 0.00% -   
2 Trentar Private Limited 0.00% -   0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -   

Total 100% 17,240   100% 3,059   100% 48   100% 3,107   

Note: The Above recorded amounts are excluding interco elimination.

55 Approval of Financial Statements
The above Consolidated Financial Statements are approved by Board of Directors on 20th Sept 2022

For  NGPC &  CO.    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Partner    Sudhir Menon   Subodh Menon Vijaykumar Malpani Rajdeep Shahane
  Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: 20/09/2022    DIN: 02487658   DIN:00972842
Mem No: 101536     Date: 20/09/2022

54 Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the classification of Current year.

Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus total liabilities
Share in profit or loss

Share in Other comprehensive income
Share in Total comprehensive 

income

S. 
No

UDIN:22101536ATXPVN4911 

Mumbai       Chairman and Managing Director

DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE III TO THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 WITH RESPECT TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONSOLIDATED)

Name of the entity
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